



IDAHO DIVISION OF OCCUPATIONAL AND PROFESSIONAL LICENSES

BRAD LITTLE - GOVERNOR
RUSSELL S. BARRON — ADMINISTRATOR

11351 W. CHINDEN BLVD. BUILDING #6
BOISE, ID 83714
PHONE: (208)334-3233

Negotiated Rulemaking Notice

BOARD OF NURSING

**LOCATION: Idaho State Board of Pharmacy Board Conference Room
1199 W Shoreline Ln #303, Boise, ID 83702**

This is a public meeting. The public is always encouraged to attend via WebEx or telephonically with the information provided below:

MEETING LINK:

Meeting number: 2459 306 5894

Password: M2m3BS9WDFg

Join by phone: (415) 655-0001 US Toll

Access code: 2459 306 5894

AGENDA

6/13/2022

4:00p.m to 5:00p.m. MST

Zero-Based Regulation Public Comment Session

Pursuant to Executive Order 2020-1 the Board of Nursing is performing a thorough review of the administrative rules 24.34.01 that govern the profession. The Division of Occupational and Professional Licenses invites the public to comment on a draft copy of the rules that illustrates changes that are being considered by this regulatory board.

If you wish to submit written comment, please email your comment to katie.stuart@dopl.idaho.gov.

PLEASE NOTE: The Idaho State Board of Nursing requests feedback on any section of this Rules draft and directs each reviewers' attention.

24.34.01 – RULES OF THE IDAHO BOARD OF NURSING

000. LEGAL AUTHORITY.

This chapter is adopted in accordance with Section 54-1404(13), Idaho Code. ()

001. SCOPE.

These rules govern the standards of nursing practice, licensure, educational programs and discipline in Idaho. ()

002. FILING OF DOCUMENTS.

All written communications and documents that are intended to be part of an official record for decision in a rulemaking or contested case must be filed with the executive director of the Board. One (1) original is sufficient for submission to the hearing officer, with one (1) copy for the Board and one (1) copy submitted to the opposing party. Whenever documents are filed by facsimile transmission (FAX), originals are to be deposited in the mail the same day or hand delivered the following business day to the hearing officer or the Board, and opposing parties. ()

003. CHANGES IN NAME AND ADDRESS—ADDRESS FOR NOTIFICATION PURPOSES.

01. Change of Name. Whenever a change of licensee name or address occurs, the Board is to be immediately notified of the any change of name or contact information. Documentation confirming the change of name will be provided to the Board on request. ()

02. Addresses for Notification Purposes. ()

a. The most recent mailing or electronic address on record with the Board is utilized for purposes of all written communication with the licensee. ()

b. In a contested case proceeding, the service of process of Board documents (including notices, summonses, complaints, subpoenas and orders) is made by: ()

i. Personal service; ()

ii. Mailing to the licensee's mailing address on record; or ()

iii. E-mailing to the licensee's electronic address on record, if authorized. Service on an electronic address is authorized when the licensee has already appeared in the proceeding or has agreed in writing to service by e-mail. ()

004. – 009. (RESERVED)

010. DEFINITIONS.

The definitions set forth in Section 54-1402, Idaho Code, are applicable to these rules. In addition, unless the context clearly denotes or requires otherwise, for purposes of these rules, the below terms have the following meanings: ()

01. Abandonment. The termination of a nurse/patient relationship without first making appropriate arrangements for continuation of required nursing care. The nurse/patient relationship begins when responsibility for nursing care of a patient is accepted by the nurse. Refusal to accept an employment assignment or refusal to accept or begin a nurse/patient relationship is not abandonment. Reasonable notification, or a timely request for alternative care for a patient, directed to a qualified provider or to a staff supervisor, prior to leaving the assignment, constitutes termination of the nurse/patient relationship. ()

02. Accreditation. The official authorization or status granted by a recognized accrediting entity or

agency other than a state board of nursing. ()

~~03. Administration of Medications. The process whereby a prescribed medication is given to a patient by one (1) of several routes. Administration of medication is a complex nursing responsibility which requires a knowledge of anatomy, physiology, pathophysiology, and pharmacology. Only persons authorized under Board statutes and these rules may administer medications and treatments as prescribed by authorized health care providers authorized to prescribe medications. ()~~

04. **Approval.** The process by which the Board evaluates and grants official recognition to education programs that meet standards established by the Board. ()

~~05. Assist. To aid or help in the accomplishment of a prescribed set of actions. ()~~

06. **Assistance With Medications.** The process whereby a non-licensed care provider is delegated tasks by a licensed nurse to aid a patient who cannot independently self-administer medications. ()

~~07. Board Staff. The executive director and other such personnel as are needed to implement the Nursing Practice Act and these rules. ()~~

08. **Charge Nurse.** A licensed nurse who bears primary responsibility for assessing, planning, prioritizing and evaluating care for the patients on a unit, as well as the overall supervision of the licensed and unlicensed staff delivering the nursing care. ()

~~09. Clinical Preceptor. A licensed registered nurse, or other qualified individual as defined in these rules, who acts to facilitate student training in a manner prescribed by a written agreement between the preceptor's employer and an educational institution. ()~~

~~10. Competence. Safely performing those functions within the role of the licensee in a manner that demonstrates essential knowledge, judgment and skills. ()~~

11. **Curriculum.** The systematic arrangement of learning experiences including didactic courses, practical experiences, and other activities needed to meet the requirements of the nursing program and of the certificate or degree conferred by the parent institution. ()

~~12. Delegation. The process by which a licensed nurse assigns tasks to be performed by others. ()~~

13. **Disability.** Any physical, mental, or emotional condition that interferes with the ability to safely and competently practice. ()

~~14. Emeritus License. A license issued to a nurse retiring from active practice for any length of time. ()~~

~~15. Licensing Examination. A licensing examination acceptable to the Board. ()~~

~~16. License in Good Standing. A license not subject to current disciplinary action, restriction, probation or investigation in any jurisdiction. ()~~

17. **Nursing Assessment.** The systematic collection of data related to the patient's health needs. ()

18. **Nursing Diagnosis.** The clinical judgments or conclusions regarding patient/client/family/community response to actual or potential health problems made as a result of the nursing assessment. ()

19. **Nursing Intervention.** An action deliberately selected and performed to support the plan of care. ()

20. **Nursing Jurisdiction.** Unless the context clearly denotes a different meaning, when used in these rules, the term nursing jurisdiction means any or all of the fifty (50) states, U.S. territories or commonwealths, ~~as the case may be.~~ ()

~~21. **Nursing Service Administrator.** A licensed registered nurse who has administrative responsibility for the nursing services provided in a health care setting. ()~~

22. **Organized Program of Study.** A written plan of instruction to include course objectives and content, teaching strategies, provisions for supervised clinical practice, evaluation methods, length and hours of course, and faculty qualifications. ()

~~23. **Patient.** An individual or a group of individuals who are the beneficiaries of nursing services in any setting and may include client, resident, family, community. ()~~

~~24. **Patient Education.** The act of teaching patients and their families, for the purpose of improving or maintaining an individual's health status. ()~~

25. **Plan of Care.** The goal-oriented strategy developed to assist individuals or groups to achieve optimal health potential. ()

26. **Practice Standards.** General guidelines that identify roles and responsibilities for a particular category of licensure and, used in conjunction with the decision-making model, define a nurse's relationship with other care providers. ()

~~27. **Probation.** A period of time set forth in an order in which certain restrictions, conditions or limitations are imposed on a licensee. ()~~

~~28. **Protocols.** Written standards that define or specify performance expectations, objectives, and criteria. ()~~

29. **Restricted License.** A nursing license subject to specific restrictions, terms, and conditions. ()

~~30. **Revocation.** Termination of the authorization to practice. ()~~

31. **Scope of Practice.** The extent of treatment, activity, influence, or range of actions permitted or authorized for licensed nurses based on the nurse's education, preparation, and experience. ()

32. **Supervision.** Designating or prescribing a course of action, or giving procedural guidance, direction, and periodic evaluation. ~~Direct supervision requires the supervisor to be physically present and immediately accessible to designate or prescribe a course of action or to give procedural guidance, direction, and periodic evaluation.~~ ()

~~33. **Suspension.** An order temporarily withdrawing a nurse's right to practice nursing. ()~~

~~34. **Technician/Technologist.** These individuals are not credentialed by regulatory bodies in Idaho and may include, but are not limited to: surgical, dialysis and radiology technicians/technologists, monitor technicians and medical assistants. ()~~

35. **Unlicensed Assistive Personnel (UAP).** This term is used to designate unlicensed personnel employed to perform nursing care services under the direction and supervision of licensed nurses. The term also includes licensed or credentialed health care workers whose job responsibilities extend to health care services beyond their usual and customary roles and which activities are provided under the direction and supervision of licensed nurses. UAPs are prohibited from performing any licensed nurse functions that are specifically defined in Section 54-1402, Idaho Code. UAPs may not be delegated procedures involving acts that require nursing assessment

or diagnosis, establishment of a plan of care or teaching, the exercise of nursing judgment, or procedures requiring specialized nursing knowledge, skills or techniques. ()

~~36. Universal Precautions. The recommendations published by the Center for Disease Control, Atlanta, Georgia, for preventing transmission of infectious disease. ()~~

011. -- 039. (RESERVED)

040. LICENSURE: GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

01. BOARD FORMS. Initial applications, renewal applications and other forms used for licensure or other purposes must be in such form as designated by the Board

02. LPN, RN, AND APRN LICENSE RENEWAL The original completed renewal application and renewal fee as prescribed in Section 900 of these rules, are submitted to the Board and post-marked or electronically dated not later than August 31 of the appropriate renewal year. ()

03. DATE LICENSE LAPSED. Licenses not renewed prior to September 1 of the appropriate year are lapsed and therefore invalid.

041. BOARD FEES.

01. Fee Determination and Collection. Pursuant to the authority and limitations established by Sections 54-1404(8), Idaho Code, the Board has determined and will collect fees for the issuance, annual renewal, or reinstatement of licenses to persons engaged in acts or practices regulated by the Board.

02. Time of Payment. Fees are due at the time of application.

040042. TEMPORARY LICENSE.

A temporary license is a nonrenewable license. ()

01. Issued at Discretion of Board. Temporary licenses are issued, for a period not to exceed ninety (90) days, and may be extended, at the discretion of the Board. ()

02. Temporary Licensure by Interstate Endorsement. A temporary license may be issued to an applicant for interstate endorsement on proof of current licensure in good standing in another nursing jurisdiction, satisfactory documentation of employment within the three (3) years immediately preceding application, and in compliance with the requirements of Section 240 of these rules. ()

03. Temporary Licensure by Examination. A temporary license to practice nursing until notification of examination results and completion of criminal background check may be issued to an applicant for Idaho licensure beginning thirty (30) days prior to graduation from a nursing education program recognized by the professional licensing board for another nursing jurisdiction, and compliance with Section 221 of these rules. ()

a. The practice of nursing by new graduates holding temporary licensure is limited as follows: ()

i. Direct supervision by a licensed registered nurse is provided by a licensed registered nurse that is physically present and immediately accessible to designate or prescribe a course of action or to give procedural guidance, direction, and periodic evaluation. ()

ii. Precluded from acting as charge nurse. ()

~~b. Temporary licenses issued to examination candidates are issued for a period not to exceed ninety (90) days. ()~~

04. Unsuccessful Examination Candidates. ()

a. An applicant who fails to pass the licensing examination is not eligible for further temporary licensure. ()

b. In the event that such applicant subsequently passes the licensing examination after twelve (12) months or more have elapsed following completion of the educational program, a temporary license with conditions may be issued until verification of clinical competence is received. ()

05. Applicants Not in Active Practice. A temporary license with specific terms and conditions may be issued to a person who has not actively engaged in the practice of nursing in any nursing jurisdiction for more than three (3) years immediately prior to the application for licensure or to an applicant whose completed application indicates the need for confirmation of the applicant's ability to practice safe nursing. ()

06. Applicants from Other Countries. Upon final evaluation of the completed application, the Board may, at its discretion, issue a temporary license to a graduate from a nursing education program outside of a nursing jurisdiction, pending notification of results of the licensing examination. ()

~~07. Fee. The applicant pays the temporary license fee, as prescribed in of these rules. ()~~

041. -- 059. (RESERVED)

060. LPN, RN, AND APRN LICENSE RENEWAL.
All licenses are renewed as prescribed in Section 54-1411, Idaho Code. ()

~~01. Renewal Applications. Renewal applications may be obtained from the board's website by contacting the Board. ()~~

~~02. Final Date to Renew. The original completed renewal application and renewal fee as prescribed in Section 900 of these rules, are submitted to the Board and post marked or electronically dated not later than August 31 of the appropriate renewal year. ()~~

~~03. Date License Lapsed. Licenses not renewed prior to September 1 of the appropriate year are lapsed and therefore invalid. ()~~

061. CONTINUED COMPETENCE REQUIREMENTS FOR RENEWAL OF AN ACTIVE LICENSE.

01. Learning Activities. In order to renew an LPN or RN license, a licensee shall complete or comply with at least ~~two one (21)~~ of any of the learning activities listed below in Paragraphs 061.01.a., b., or e. following within the two-year (2) renewal period either: ()

~~a. 100 hours of pPractice; or ()~~

~~i. Current nursing specialty certification as defined in Section 402 of these rules; or ()~~

~~ii. One hundred (100) hours of practice or simulation practice, paid or unpaid, in which the nurse applies knowledge or clinical judgment in a way that influences patients, families, nurses, or organizations; ()~~

~~b. Education, Continuing Education, E-learning, and In-service: ()~~

~~i. Fifteen (15) contact hours of continuing education, e-learning, academic courses, nursing-related in-service offered by an accredited educational institution, healthcare~~

institution, or organization (a contact hour equals not less than fifty (50) minutes); or ()

~~ii. Completion of a minimum of one (1) semester credit hour of post licensure academic education relevant to nursing practice, offered by a college or university accredited by an organization recognized by the U.S. Department of Education; or ()~~

~~iii. Completion of a Board recognized refresher course in nursing or nurse residency program; or ()~~

~~iv. Participation in or presentation of a workshop, seminar, conference, or course relevant to the practice of nursing and approved by an organization recognized by the Board to include, but not limited to: ()~~

~~(1) A nationally recognized nursing organization; ()~~

~~(2) An accredited academic institution; ()~~

~~(3) A provider of continuing education recognized by another board of nursing; ()~~

~~(4) A provider of continuing education recognized by a regulatory board of another discipline; or ()~~

~~(5) A program that meets criteria established by the Board; ()~~

~~e. Professional Engagement: ()~~

~~i. Acknowledged contributor to a published nursing related article or manuscript; or ()~~

~~ii. Teaching or developing a nursing related course of instruction; or ()~~

~~iii. Participation in related professional activities including, but not limited to, research, published professional materials, nursing related volunteer work, teaching (if not licensee's primary employment), peer reviewing, precepting, professional auditing, and service on nursing or healthcare related boards, organizations, associations or committees. ()~~

02. APRN Continued Competence Requirements. Registered nurses who also hold an active license as an APRN shall only meet the requirements of Section 300 of these rules. ()

03. First Renewal Exemption. A licensee is exempt from the continued competence requirement for the first renewal following initial licensure by examination. ()

~~04. Extension. The Board may grant an extension for good cause for up to one (1) year for the completion of continuing competence requirements. Such extension shall not relieve the licensee of the continuing competence requirements. ()~~

~~05. Beyond the Control of Licensee Exemption. The Board may, in the exercise of its sound discretion, grant an exemption for all or part of the continuing competence requirements due to circumstances beyond the control of the licensee. ()~~

~~06. Disciplinary Proceeding. Continued competence activities or courses required by Board order in a disciplinary proceeding shall not be counted as meeting the requirements for licensure renewal. ()~~

~~07. Compliance Effective Dates. Compliance with the continuing competence requirements of Sections 061 and 062 will be necessary to renew an LPN license beginning with 2018 renewals and an RN license beginning with 2019 renewals. ()~~

062. DOCUMENTING COMPLIANCE WITH CONTINUED COMPETENCE REQUIREMENTS.

01. Retention of Original Documentation. All licensees are to maintain original documentation of completion for a period of two (2) years following renewal and to provide such documentation within thirty (30) days of a request from the Board for proof of compliance. ()

02. Documentation of Compliance. Documentation of compliance consists of the following evidence of successful completion of the activity including tax or other validated records of time worked, the name of the entity providing the education, the title of the program, the date of completion, number of hours and the name of the individual obtaining the credit: ()

a. Evidence of national certification includes a copy of a certificate that includes the name of licensee, name of certifying body, date of certification, and date of certification expiration. Certification will be initially attained during the licensure period, have been in effect during the entire licensure period, or have been recertified during the licensure period. ()

b. Evidence of post-licensure academic education includes a copy of the transcript with the name of the licensee, name of educational institution, date(s) of attendance, name of course, and number of credit hours received. ()

c. Evidence of completion of a Board-recognized refresher course includes certificate or written correspondence from the provider with the name of the licensee, name of provider, and verification of successful completion of the course. ()

d. Evidence of completion of research or a nursing project includes an abstract or summary, the name of the licensee, role of the licensee as principal or contributing investigator, date of completion, statement of the problem, research or project objectives, methods used, and summary of findings. ()

e. Evidence of contributing to a published nursing-related article, manuscript, paper, book, or book chapter includes a copy of the publication to include the name of the licensee and publication date. ()

f. Evidence of teaching a course for college credit includes documentation of the course offering indicating instructor, course title, course syllabus, and the number of credit hours. Teaching a particular course may only be used once to satisfy the continued competence requirement unless the course offering and syllabus has changed in a material or significant fashion. ()

g. Evidence of teaching a course for continuing education credit includes a written attestation from the director of the program or authorizing entity including the date(s) of the course and the number of hours awarded. ()

h. Evidence of hours of continuing learning activities or courses includes the name of the licensee, title of activity, name of provider, number of hours, and date of activity. ()

i. Evidence of one hundred (100) hours of practice in nursing includes the name of the licensee and documentation satisfactory to the Board of the number of hours worked during review period validated by the employer/recipient agency. If self-employed, hours worked may be validated through other methods such as tax records or other business records. If practice is of a volunteer or gratuitous nature, hours worked may be validated by the recipient agency. ()

063. REINSTATEMENT (NON-DISCIPLINE).

A person whose license has lapsed for failure to pay the renewal fee by the specified date may apply for reinstatement by submitting the items set out in Section 54-1411(3), Idaho Code and a current fingerprint-based criminal history check as set forth in Section 54-1401(3), Idaho Code, as well as paying the fees prescribed in these rules. ()

064. REINSTATEMENT AFTER DISCIPLINE.

~~01. **Submission of Application Materials Application Following Discipline.** A person whose license has been subject to disciplinary action by the Board may apply for reinstatement of the license to active and unrestricted status by:~~ ()

~~a. Submitting the items set out in Section 54-1411(3), Idaho Code;~~ ()

~~b. Submitting a current fingerprint based criminal history check as set forth in Section 54-1401(3), Idaho Code;~~ ()

~~c. Paying the fees prescribed in these rules; and~~ ()

~~d. is to include documentation of compliance with any term and restrictions set forth in any order as a condition of reinstatement.~~ ()

02. Appearance Before Board. Applicants for reinstatement may be called to appear before the Board. ()

03. Application for Reinstatement After Revocation. Unless otherwise provided in the order of revocation, applicants for reinstatement of revoked licenses are precluded from applying for reinstatement for a period of two (2) years after entry of the order. ()

065. -- 075. (RESERVED)

076. PERSONS EXEMPTED BY BOARD.

Licensure to practice nursing is not necessary, nor is the practice of nursing prohibited for persons exempted by the Board including: ()

~~01. **Technicians and Technologists.** Technicians and technologists who comply with Section 491 of these rules.~~ ()

~~02. **Non-Resident Nurses.** Non-resident nurses currently licensed in good standing in another nursing jurisdiction, who are in Idaho on a temporary basis because of enrollment in or presentation of a short term course of instruction recognized or approved by the Board and who are performing functions incident to formal instruction.~~ ()

~~03. **Family Members and Others.**~~ ()

~~a. Family members providing care to a person to whom they are related by blood, marriage, adoption, legal guardianship or licensed foster care.~~ ()

~~b. Non-family members who provide gratuitous care to a person on a temporary basis in order to give respite to family members who regularly provide care to that person.~~ ()

~~c. Live-in domestics, housekeepers and companions provided they do not represent themselves as, nor receive compensation as, licensed nurses or other nursing care providers and so long as any health care provided is incidental to the services for which they are employed.~~ ()

04. Nurse Apprentice. A nurse apprentice is a nursing student or recent graduate who is employed for remuneration in a non-licensed capacity outside the student role by a Board approved health care agency. ()

a. Applicants for nurse apprentice must: ()

i. Be enrolled in an accredited/approved nursing education program that is substantially equivalent to Idaho's approved programs for practical/registered nursing. ()

Commented [NC1]: Move

Commented [NC2]: For further discussion

ii. Be in good academic standing at the time of application and notify the Board of any change in academic standing. ()

iii. Meet the employing agency's health care skills validation requirements. ()

iv. Satisfactorily complete a basic nursing fundamentals course. ()

v. Use obvious designations that identify the applicant as a nurse apprentice. ()

b. ~~A completed Complete an application for nurse apprentice consists of:~~ ()

~~i. Completed application form provided by the Board; and~~ ()

~~ii. Verification of satisfactory completion of a basic nursing fundamentals course; and~~ ()

~~iii. Validation of successful demonstration of skills from a nursing education program; and~~ ()

~~iv. Verification of good academic standing.~~ ()

c. An individual whose application is approved will be issued a letter identifying the individual as a nurse apprentice for a designated time period to extend not more than three (3) months after successful completion of the nursing education program. ()

d. A nurse apprentice may, under licensed registered nurse supervision, perform all functions approved by the Board for unlicensed assistive personnel as set forth in Section 490 of these rules. ()

05. Employer Application. ()

a. Health care agencies wishing to employ nurse apprentices are to complete an application form provided by the Board that consists of: ()

i. Job descriptions for apprentice; ()

ii. A written plan for orientation and skill validation; ()

iii. The name of the licensed registered nurse who is accountable and responsible for the coordination or management of the nurse apprentice program; ()

iv. Assurance that a licensed registered nurse is readily available when nurse apprentice is working; ()

v. A written procedure for the nurse apprentice who is asked to perform a task that could jeopardize a patient and who declines to perform the task; and ()

vi. A fee of one hundred dollars (\$100). ()

Commented [NC3]: Move this to the fee table.

b. Following application review, the Board may grant approval to a health care agency to employ nurse apprentices for a period of up to one (1) year. ()

c. To ensure continuing compliance with Board requirements, each approved agency submits an annual report to the Board on forms provided by the Board. Based on its findings, the Board may grant continuing approval annually for an additional one (1) year period. ()

d. At any time, if the employing agency fails to inform the Board of changes in conditions upon which approval was based or otherwise fails to comply with established requirements, the Board may notify the agency of withdrawal of approval. ()

077. -- 089. (RESERVED)

090. REAPPLICATION FOR A LICENSE AFTER PREVIOUS DENIAL.

Commented [NC4]: Relocate to 040.05

01. Request for Review. Review of a denied application may be requested by submitting a written statement and documentation that includes evidence, satisfactory to the Board, of rehabilitation, or elimination or cure of the conditions for denial. ()

~~**02. Reapplication Files.** Reapplication files remain open and active for a period of twelve (12) months from date of receipt. After twelve (12) months, the file is closed and any subsequent reapplication will require submission of a new application form and payment of the applicable fees. ()~~

Commented [NC5]: Covered in 67-2604(m)

091. -- 099. (RESERVED)

100. GROUNDS FOR DISCIPLINE.

~~**01. False Statement.** A false, fraudulent or forged statement or misrepresentation in procuring a license to practice nursing means, but need not be limited to: ()~~

~~**a.** Procuring or attempting to procure a license to practice nursing by filing forged or altered documents or credentials; or ()~~

~~**b.** Falsifying, misrepresenting facts or failing to verify and accurately report any and all facts submitted on any application for licensure, examination, relicensure, or reinstatement of licensure by making timely and appropriate inquiry of all jurisdictions in which licensee has made application for, or obtained, licensure or certification or engaged in the practice of nursing; or ()~~

~~**c.** Impersonating any applicant or acting as proxy for the applicant in any examination for nurse licensure. ()~~

~~**02. Conviction of a Felony.** Conviction of, or entry of a withheld judgment or a plea of nolo contendere to, conduct constituting a felony. ()~~

~~**03. False or Assumed Name.** Practicing nursing under a false or assumed name means, but need not be limited to, carrying out licensed nursing functions while using other than the individual's given or legal name. ()~~

Commented [NC6]: Duplicative of statute 54-1413

~~**04. Offense Involving Moral Turpitude.** An offense involving moral turpitude means, but need not be limited to, an act of baseness, vileness, or depravity in the private and social duties that a man owes to his fellow man, or to society in general, contrary to the accepted and customary rule of right and duty between man and man. ()~~

Commented [NC7]: Prohibited by SB1368

~~**05. Gross Negligence or Recklessness.** Gross negligence or recklessness in performing nursing functions means, but need not be limited to, a substantial departure from established and customary standards of care which, under similar circumstances, would have been exercised by a licensed peer; an act or an omission where there is a legal duty to act or to refrain from acting that a reasonable and prudent practitioner of nursing under same or similar facts and circumstances would have done, would have refrained from doing or would have done in a different manner and which did or could have resulted in harm or injury to a patient/client. An exercise of so slight a degree of care as to justify the belief that there was a conscious or overt disregard or indifference for the health, safety, well-being, or welfare of the public shall be considered a substantial departure from the accepted standard of care. ()~~

~~**06. Habitual Use of Alcohol or Drugs.** Habitual use of alcoholic beverages or drugs means, but need not be limited to, the use of such substances to the extent that the nurse's judgment, skills, or abilities to provide safe and competent nursing care are impaired; or that the individual is unable to care for himself or his property or his ()~~

family members because of such use; or it is determined by a qualified person that the individual is in need of medical or psychiatric care, treatment or rehabilitation or counseling because of drug or alcohol use. ()

07. **Physical or Mental Unfitness.** Physical or mental unfitness to practice nursing means, but need not be limited to, a court order adjudging that a licensee is mentally incompetent, or an evaluation by a qualified professional person indicating that the licensee is mentally or physically incapable of engaging in registered or practical nursing in a manner consistent with sound patient care; or uncorrected physical defect that precludes the safe performance of nursing functions. ()

08. **Violations of Standards of Conduct.** Violations of standards of conduct and practice adopted by the Board means, but need not be limited to, any violation of those standards of conduct described in Section 101 of these rules. ()

09. **Conduct to Deceive, Defraud or Endanger.** Conduct of a character likely to deceive, defraud, or endanger patients or the public includes, but need not be limited to: ()

a. Violating the standards of conduct and practice adopted by the Board. ()

b. Being convicted of any crime or act substantially related to nursing practice and including, but not limited to, sex crimes, drug violations, acts of violence and child or adult abuse. ()

10. **Action Against a License.** Action against a license means entry of any order restricting, limiting, revoking or suspending or otherwise disciplining a license or privilege to practice nursing by any jurisdiction. A certified copy of an order entered in any jurisdiction is prima facie evidence of the matters contained therein. ()

11. **Failure to Make Timely and Appropriate Inquiry.** Failing to make timely and appropriate inquiry verifying licensure status in all jurisdictions in which the applicant has ever applied for licensure, certification or privilege to practice, including those jurisdictions in which the applicant is currently or was ever licensed, or in which applicant has practiced, prior to filing any application, verification or other statement regarding licensure status with the Board. ()

12. **Failure to Cooperate With Authorities.** Failure to cooperate with authorities in the investigation of any alleged misconduct or interfering with a Board investigation by willful misrepresentation of facts, failure to provide information on request of the Board, or the use of threats or harassment against any patient or witness to prevent them from providing evidence. ()

13. **Patterns of Poor Practice.** Repeatedly engaging in conduct that departs from the customary standards of care. ()

Commented [NC8]: Duplicative of 54-1413

Commented [NC9]: 54-1413(1)(a) and otherwise beyond statutory authority. Unnecessary as staff does this

Commented [NC10]: In discipline draft statute

Commented [NC11]: Establishing a pattern is not necessary

101. STANDARDS OF CONDUCT.

01. **Violations.** Any violation of these Standards of Conduct is grounds for disciplinary action in accordance with Section 54-1413(1), Idaho Code, of the Idaho Nursing Practice Act and Section 090 or 100 of these rules. ()

02. **Classification.** For purposes of convenience, the standards of conduct are grouped generally into one (1) of three (3) categories: license, practice, and professional responsibility. The fact that any particular standard is so classified in any particular category is not relevant for any purpose other than ease of use. ()

03. **License.** ()

a. **Period of Practice.** The nurse can practice registered or practical nursing in Idaho only with a current Idaho license or during the period of valid temporary licensure or as otherwise allowed by law. ()

b. **Aiding in Violation of Law.** The nurse shall not aid, abet, or assist any other person to violate or

circumvent laws or rules pertaining to the conduct and practice of nursing. ()

c. Reporting Grossly Negligent or Reckless Practice. The nurse shall report to the Board any licensed nurse who is grossly negligent or reckless in performing nursing functions or who otherwise violates the Nursing Practice Act or the Board rules. ()

d. Unlawful Use of License. The nurse shall not permit their license to be used by another person for any purpose or permit unlicensed persons under their jurisdiction or supervision to indicate in any way that they are licensed to perform functions restricted to licensed persons. ()

e. Impairment of Ability. The nurse shall not practice nursing while the ability to practice is impaired by alcohol or drugs or physical, mental or emotional disability. ()

04. Practice. The nurse shall have knowledge of the statutes and rules governing nursing and function within the defined legal scope of nursing practice, not assume any duty or responsibility within the practice of nursing without adequate training or where competency has not been maintained, and: ()

a. Delegate activities only to persons who are competent and qualified to undertake and perform the delegated activities and will not delegate to non-licensed persons functions that are to be performed only by licensed nurses. The nurse delegating functions is to supervise the persons to whom the functions have been assigned or delegated. ()

b. Act to safeguard the patient from the incompetent practice, verbal or physical abusive acts or illegal practice of any person. ()

c. Not obtain, possess, furnish or administer prescription drugs to any person, including self, except as directed by a person authorized by law to prescribe drugs. ()

d. Not abandon patients in need of nursing care in a negligent or wanton manner. The nurse will leave a nursing assignment only after properly reporting and notifying appropriate personnel and will transfer responsibilities to appropriate personnel or care giver when continued care is necessitated by the patient's condition. ()

e. Respect the patient's privacy. ()

~~f. Not disseminate information about the patient to individuals not entitled to such information except where such information is mandated by law or for the protection of the patient. ()~~

Commented [NC12]: Covered by HIPAA

g. Observe the condition and signs and symptoms of a patient, record the information, and report to appropriate persons any significant changes. ()

h. Function as a member of the health team and shall collaborate with other health team members as necessary to meet the patient's health needs. ()

i. Adhere to [Center for Disease Control's](#) universal precautions and carry out principles of asepsis and infection control and not place the patient, the patient's family or the nurse's coworkers at risk for the transmission of infectious diseases. ()

05. Professional Responsibility. ()

a. Disclosing Contents of Licensing Examination. The nurse is not to disclose contents of any licensing examination, or solicit, accept, or compile information regarding the contents of any examination before, during, or after its administration. ()

b. Considerations in Providing Care. In providing nursing care, the nurse will respect and consider

the individual's human dignity, health problems, personal attributes, national origin, and handicaps and not discriminate on the basis of age, sex, race, religion, economic or social status or sexual preferences. ()

c. Responsibility and Accountability Assumed. The nurse is responsible and accountable for their nursing judgments, actions and competence. ()

d. Witnessing Wastage of Controlled Substances Medication. Controlled substances may not be wasted without witnesses. The nurse cannot sign any record as a witness attesting to the wastage of controlled substance medications unless the wastage was personally witnessed. The nurse cannot solicit the signatures on any record of a person as a witness to the wastage of a controlled substance when that person did not witness the wastage. The nurse will solicit signatures of individuals who witnessed the wastage in a timely manner. ()

e. Record-keeping. The nurse shall make or keep accurate, intelligible entries into records mandated by law, employment or customary practice of nursing, and will not falsify, destroy, alter or knowingly make incorrect or unintelligible entries into patients' records or employer or employee records. ()

f. Diverting or Soliciting. The nurse will respect the property of the patient and employer and not take or divert equipment, materials, property, or drugs without prior consent or authorization, nor solicit or borrow money, materials or property from patients. ()

g. ~~Exploit, Solicit, or Receive Fees. The nurse shall not exploit the patient or the patient's family for personal or financial gain or offer, give, solicit, or receive any fee or other consideration for the referral of a patient or client.~~ ()

h. Professionalism. The nurse must not abuse the patient's trust, will respect the dignity of the profession and maintain appropriate professional boundaries with respect to patients, the patients' families, and the nurse's coworkers. The nurse is not to engage in sexual misconduct or violent, threatening or abusive behavior towards patients, patients' families or the nurse's coworkers. The nurse will be aware of the potential imbalance of power in professional relationships with patients, based on their need for care, assistance, guidance, and support, and ensure that all aspects of that relationship focus exclusively upon the needs of the patient. ()

i. For purposes of this rule ~~and Section 54 1413, Idaho Code, sexual misconduct is defined as set forth in Section 18-919(b)(1)-(4), Idaho Code, violations include, but are not limited to:~~ ()

~~(1) Engaging in or soliciting any type of sexual conduct with a patient; ()~~

~~(2) Using the nurse-patient relationship, trust and confidence of the patient derived from the nurse-patient relationship, or any information obtained as a result of the nurse-patient relationship, to solicit, suggest or discuss dating or a romantic or sexual relationship with a patient; ()~~

~~(3) Using confidential information obtained during the course of the nurse-patient relationship to solicit, suggest or discuss dating or a romantic relationship, or engage in sexual conduct with a patient, former patient, colleague, or member of the public; and ()~~

~~(4) Engaging in or attempting to engage in sexual exploitation or criminal sexual misconduct directed at patients, former patients, colleagues, or members of the public, whether within or outside the workplace. ()~~

ii. For purposes of this rule: ()

~~(1) Consent of a patient is not a defense. In the case of sexual exploitation or criminal sexual misconduct, consent of the victim is not a defense. ()~~

~~(2) A patient ceases to be a patient thirty (30) days after receiving the final nursing services, or final reasonably anticipated nursing services from a nurse, unless the patient is determined by the Board to be particularly vulnerable by his minority; known mental, emotional, or physical disability; known alcohol or drug dependency; or other circumstance. A patient deemed particularly vulnerable ceases to be a patient one (1) year after receiving the~~

Commented [NC13]: Move to statute via discipline draft bill

final nursing services, or final reasonably anticipated nursing services from a nurse. ()

(3) It is not a violation of this rule for a nurse to continue a sexual relationship with a spouse or individual of majority if a consensual sexual relationship existed prior to the establishment of the nurse-patient relationship. ()

iii. The following definitions apply to this rule: ()

(1) "Sexual conduct" means any behavior that might reasonably be interpreted as being designed or intended to arouse or gratify the sexual desires of an individual. This includes, but is not limited to, physical touching of breasts, buttocks or sexual organs, creation or use of pornographic images, discussion about sexual topics unrelated to the patient's care, intentional exposure of genitals, and not allowing a patient privacy, except as may be medically necessary. ()

(2) "Sexual exploitation" means any actual or attempted abuse of a position of vulnerability, differential power, or trust, for sexual purposes, including, but not limited to, profiting monetarily, socially or politically from the sexual conduct of another, or withholding or threatening to withhold care, medication, food or other services to coerce sexual conduct. ()

(3) "Criminal sexual misconduct" means any sexual conduct that, if proven, would constitute a felony or misdemeanor under state or federal law. ()

102. -- 131. (RESERVED)

132. RESTRICTED LICENSES.

Restricted licenses may be issued to qualified individuals in four (4) categories: post-discipline, non-practicing status, restricted status, and substance use and mental health disorders. Failure to comply with the terms and conditions of a restricted license will be cause for summary suspension. ()

01. Following Disciplinary Action. ()

a. After evaluation of an application for licensure reinstatement, the Board may issue a restricted license to a nurse whose license has been revoked. ()

b. The Board will specify the conditions of issuance of the restricted license in writing. The conditions may be stated on the license. ()

Commented [NC14]: Move to 063. Reinstatement.

02. Non-Practicing Status. ()

a. Individuals who are prevented from engaging in the active practice of nursing may be issued a restricted license. ()

b. Non-practicing status does not entitle the licensee to engage in the active practice of nursing. The status will be noted on the license. ()

c. The non-practicing restriction may be removed by the Board following receipt and evaluation of evidence satisfactory to the Board confirming that the licensee's physical or mental health status no longer prevents the individual from engaging in the active practice of nursing. ()

03. Restricted Status. ()

a. Individuals whose disabilities restrict or inhibit their ability to provide a full range of nursing services may be issued a restricted license. ()

b. The conditions may include, but are not limited to: ()

- i. ~~Notifying the Board of changes in employment status.~~ ()
 - ii. Submission of regular reports by the employer or by such other entities or individuals as the Board may desire. ()
 - iii. Meeting with Board representatives. ()
 - iv. Specific parameters of practice, excluding the performance of specific nursing functions. ()
- d. The conditions of restricted practice may be removed by the Board following receipt and evaluation of satisfactory evidence confirming that the health status of the licensee no longer restricts or inhibits the person's ability to provide a full range of nursing services. ()

04. Disability Due to Substance Use Disorder or Mental Health Disorder. ()

- a. Individuals whose practice is or may be impaired due to substance use disorder or to mental health disorder may qualify for issuance of a restricted license as an alternative to discipline. ()
- b. The executive ~~director-officer~~ may restrict the license of an individual who has a substance use disorder or mental health disorder for a period not to exceed five (5) years and who:
 - i. Holds a current license to practice in Idaho as a registered nurse, advanced practice registered nurse, or licensed practical nurse, or is otherwise eligible, and is in the process of applying for licensure; ()
 - ii. Has a demonstrated or diagnosed substance use disorder or mental health disorder such that ability to safely practice is, or may be, impaired; ()
 - iii. Sign a written statement admitting to all facts that may constitute grounds for disciplinary action or demonstrate impairment of the safe practice of nursing, and waiving the right to a hearing and all other rights to due process in a contested case under the Idaho Administrative Procedures Act and the Nursing Practice Act; and ()
 - iv. Submit reliable evidence, satisfactory to the executive ~~director-officer~~, that they are competent to safely practice nursing before being authorized to return to active practice. ()
- c. If ordered, the applicant must satisfactorily complete a treatment program accepted by the Board. ()
- d. The applicant agrees to participation in the Board's monitoring program. ()
- e. Admission to the Program for Recovering Nurses or issuance of a restricted license, or both, may be denied for any reason including, but not limited to ~~the following~~: ()
 - i. ~~The applicant diverted diversion of~~ controlled substances for other than self-administration; ~~or~~ ()
 - ii. ~~The applicant~~ creates too great a safety risk; or ()
 - iii. ~~The applicant~~ has been terminated from this, or any other, alternative program for non-compliance. ()
- f. Upon satisfactory compliance with all of the terms of the restricted license, and provided that the licensee demonstrates that they are qualified and competent to practice nursing, the executive ~~director-officer~~ will lift the restriction imposed. ()

Commented [NC15]: Under legal review; expect to simplify

05. Compliance Required. Restricted licensure is conditioned upon the individual's prompt and faithful compliance with terms and conditions, which may include: ()

a. Satisfactory progress in any ordered continuing treatment or rehabilitation program. ()

b. Regular and prompt notification to the Board of changes in name and address of self or any employer. ()

Commented [NC16]: Duplicative of 003.0 and 132.03.03

c. Obtaining of performance evaluations prepared by the employer to be submitted at specified intervals and at any time upon request. ()

d. Continuing participation in, and compliance with all recommendations and requirements of, the approved treatment or rehabilitation program, and obtaining of reports of progress submitted by the person directing the treatment or rehabilitation program at specified intervals and at any time upon request. ()

e. Submission of self-evaluations and personal progress reports at specified intervals and at any time upon request. ()

f. Submission of reports of supervised random alcohol/drug screens at specified intervals and at any time upon request. Participant is responsible for reporting as directed, submitting a sufficient quantity of sample to be tested, and payment for the screening. ()

g. Meeting with the Board's professional staff or advisory committee at any time upon request. ()

h. Working only in approved practice settings. ()

i. Authorization by licensee of the release of applicable records pertaining to assessment, diagnostic evaluation, treatment recommendations, treatment and progress, performance evaluations, counseling, random chemical screens, and after-care at periodic intervals as requested. ()

j. Compliance with all laws pertaining to nursing practice, all nursing standards, and all standards, policies and procedures of licensee's employer relating to any of the admitted misconduct or facts as set out in the written statement signed by licensee, or relating to the providing of safe, competent nursing service. ()

k. Compliance with other specific terms and conditions as may be directed by the executive director/officer. ()

06. Summary Suspension - Lack of Compliance. ()

Commented [NC17]: Legal review underway

a. Any failure to comply with the terms and conditions of a restricted license is deemed to be an immediate threat to the health, safety, and welfare of the public and the executive director/officer will, upon receiving evidence of any such failure, summarily suspend the restricted license. ()

i. Summary suspension of a restricted license may occur if, during participation in the program, information is received which, after investigation, indicates the individual may have violated a provision of the law or Board rules governing the practice of nursing. ()

b. An individual whose restricted license has been summarily suspended by the executive director/officer may request a hearing regarding the suspension by certified letter addressed to the Board. If the individual fails to request a hearing within twenty (20) days after service of the notice of suspension by the executive director/officer, the right to a hearing is waived. If a hearing is timely requested, after the hearing the Board will enter an order affirming or rejecting summary suspension of the restricted license and enter such further orders revoking, suspending, or otherwise disciplining the nursing license as may be necessary. The above provisions do not limit or restrict the right of Board staff to bring any summary suspension order before the Board for further proceedings, even if the licensee has not requested a hearing. ()

c. The Board may, for good cause, stay any order of the executive ~~director-officer~~ or may modify the terms and conditions of a restricted license as deemed appropriate to regulate, monitor or supervise the practice of any licensee. ()

133. EMERGENCY ACTION.

If the Board finds that public health, safety, or welfare requires emergency action and incorporates a finding to that effect in its order, summary suspension of a license may be ordered pending proceedings for revocation or other action. Such proceedings will be promptly instituted and determined as authorized in Title 67, Chapter 52, Idaho Code. ()

Commented [NC18]: Move to 040

134. -- 219. (RESERVED)

220. QUALIFICATIONS FOR LICENSURE BY EXAMINATION.

01. In-State. Individuals who have successfully completed all requirements for graduation from an Idaho nursing education program approved by the Board will be eligible to make application to the Board to take the licensing examination. ()

02. Out-of-State. Individuals who hold a certificate of completion from a nursing education program having board of nursing approval in another nursing jurisdiction will be eligible to make application to the Board to take the licensing examination, providing they meet substantially the same basic educational requirements as graduates of Idaho nursing education programs at the time of application. ()

03. Practical Nurse Equivalency Requirement. An applicant for practical nurse licensure by examination who has not completed an approved practical nurse program, must provide satisfactory evidence (such as official transcripts) of successful completion of nursing and related courses at an approved school preparing persons for licensure as registered nurses to include a course in personal and vocational relationships of the practical nurse. Related courses are to be equivalent to those same courses included in a practical nursing program approved by the Board. ()

04. Time Limit for Writing Examinations. Graduates who do not take the examination within twelve (12) months following completion of the nursing education program must follow specific remedial measures as prescribed by the Board. ()

221. EXAMINATION APPLICATION.

~~A completed application for licensure by examination consists of a completed board approved application, all applicable fees and any additional required documentation.~~ ()

222. EXAMINATION AND RE-EXAMINATION.

01. Applicants for Registered or Practical Nurse Licensure. Applicants will successfully pass the National Council Licensure Examination (NCLEX) for registered nurse licensure or for practical nurse licensure, as applied for and approved. In lieu of the NCLEX, the Board may accept documentation that the applicant has taken and successfully passed the State Board Test Pool examination. ()

223. -- 239. (RESERVED)

240. QUALIFICATIONS FOR LICENSURE BY ENDORSEMENT.

An applicant for Idaho licensure by interstate endorsement must: ()

Commented [NC19]: To be aligned with 67-9409

01. Graduation. Be a graduate of a state approved/accredited practical or registered nursing education program ~~that is substantially equivalent to Idaho's board-approved practical or registered nursing education program.~~ Applicants for practical nurse licensure may also qualify under the provisions of Section 241 of these rules. ()

02. Licensing Examination. Have taken the same licensing examination as that administered in Idaho

and achieved scores established as passing for that examination by the Board. ()

03. Minimum Requirements. In lieu of the requirements in Subsections 240.01 and 240.02 of this rule, have qualifications that are substantially equivalent to Idaho's minimum requirements. ()

04. Current Practice Experience. Have actively practiced nursing at least eighty (80) hours within the preceding three (3) years. ()

05. License from Another Nursing Jurisdiction. Hold a license in good standing from another nursing jurisdiction. ~~The license of any applicant subject to official investigation or disciplinary proceedings is not considered in good standing.~~ ()

Commented [NC20]: Duplicative of 54-1407 & 1408

241. LICENSURE BY EQUIVALENCY AND ENDORSEMENT LICENSURE.

Commented [NC21]: To be aligned with 67-9409

01. Application by Equivalency. An applicant for practical nurse licensure by interstate endorsement based on equivalency must meet the following requirements: ()

a. Have successfully taken the same licensing examination as that administered in Idaho; and ()

b. Hold a license in another nursing jurisdiction based on successful completion of nursing and related courses at an approved school preparing persons for licensure as registered nurses to include a course in personal and vocational relationships of the practical nurse (or equivalent experience) and additional courses equivalent to those same courses included in a practical nursing program approved by the Board, and provide evidence thereof. ()

02. Applicants Licensed in Another Nursing Jurisdiction. Graduates of schools of nursing located outside the United States, its territories or commonwealths who are licensed in a nursing jurisdiction and who meet the requirements of Subsections 240.02 through 240.05 of these rules may be processed as applicants for licensure by endorsement from another state. ()

~~**03. Application for Licensure by Endorsement.** A completed application for licensure by interstate endorsement consists of a completed board approved application, all applicable fees and any additional required documentation.~~ ()

Commented [NC22]: See Rule 40

242. – 259. (RESERVED)

260. QUALIFICATIONS FOR LICENSURE OF GRADUATES OF SCHOOLS OF NURSING LOCATED OUTSIDE THE UNITED STATES, ITS TERRITORIES, OR COMMONWEALTHS.

A graduate from a nursing education program outside of the United States, its territories or commonwealths must: ()

01. Qualifications. Demonstrate nursing knowledge and English proficiency skills in reading, writing, speaking and listening. ()

02. Education Credentials. Have education qualifications that are substantially equivalent to Idaho's minimum requirements at the time of application. ()

03. License. Hold a license or other indication of authorization to practice in good standing, issued by a government entity or agency from a country outside the United States, its territories or commonwealths. ()

04. Examination/Re-Examination. Take and achieve a passing score on the licensing examination required in Subsection 222.01 of these rules. ()

~~**261. APPLICATION FOR LICENSURE OF GRADUATES OF SCHOOLS OF NURSING LOCATED OUTSIDE THE UNITED STATES, ITS TERRITORIES, OR COMMONWEALTHS.**~~

~~A completed application for licensure by a graduate of a nursing education program outside of the United States, its territories or commonwealths consists of a completed board approved application, all applicable fees and any additional required documentation.~~ ()

Commented [NC23]: See rule 40

262. -- 270. (RESERVED)

271. DEFINITIONS RELATED TO ADVANCED PRACTICE REGISTERED NURSING.

Commented [NC24]: I'll incorporate into general definitions;

Commented [TF25R24]: Agree.

01. ~~Accountability.~~ Means being answerable for one's own actions. ()

02. ~~Advanced Practice Registered Nurse.~~ Means a registered nurse licensed in this state who has gained additional specialized knowledge, skills and experience through a graduate or post-graduate program of study as defined herein and is authorized to perform advanced nursing practice, which may include acts of diagnosis and treatment, and the prescribing, administering and dispensing of therapeutic pharmacologic and non-pharmacologic agents, as defined herein. ~~Advanced practice registered nurses includes nurses licensed in the roles of certified nurse-midwife, clinical nurse specialist, certified nurse practitioner, and certified registered nurse anesthetist.~~ Advanced practice registered nurses, when functioning within the recognized scope of practice, assume primary responsibility for the care of their patients in diverse settings. This practice incorporates the use of professional judgment in the assessment and management of wellness and conditions appropriate to the advanced practice registered nurse's role, population focus and area of specialization. ()

Commented [NC26]: Repeat of statute defn - see 54.1402(1)

~~03. Authorized Advanced Practice Registered Nurse.~~ Means an advanced practice registered nurse authorized by the Board to prescribe and dispense pharmacologic and non-pharmacologic agents pursuant to Section 315 of these rules. ()

Commented [NC27]: Move elsewhere? See 280.02

04. **Certification.** Means recognition of the applicant's advanced knowledge, skills and abilities in a defined area of nursing practice by a national organization recognized by the Board. The certification process measures the theoretical and clinical content denoted in the advanced scope of practice, and is developed in accordance with generally accepted standards of validation and reliability. ()

05. **Certified Nurse-Midwife.** Means a licensed registered nurse who has graduated from a nationally accredited graduate or post-graduate nurse-midwifery program, and has current certification as a nurse-midwife from a national organization recognized by the Board. ()

06. **Certified Nurse Practitioner.** Means a licensed registered nurse who has graduated from a nationally accredited graduate or post-graduate nurse practitioner program and has current certification as a nurse practitioner from a national organization recognized by the Board. ()

07. **Certified Registered Nurse Anesthetist.** Means a licensed registered nurse who has graduated from a nationally accredited graduate or post-graduate nurse anesthesia program and has current certification as a nurse anesthetist from a national organization recognized by the Board. ()

08. **Clinical Nurse Specialist.** Means a licensed registered nurse who has graduated from a nationally accredited graduate or post-graduate clinical nurse specialist program and has current certification as a clinical nurse specialist from a national organization recognized by the Board. ()

~~09. Collaboration.~~ Means the cooperative working relationship with another health care provider, each contributing their respective expertise in the provision of patient care, and such collaborative practice includes the discussion of patient treatment and cooperation in the management and delivery of health care. ()

~~10. Consultation.~~ Means conferring with another health care provider for the purpose of obtaining information or advice. ()

11. **Diagnosis.** Means identification of actual or potential health problems and the need for intervention based on analysis of data collected. Diagnosis depends upon the synthesis of information obtained through interview, physical exam, diagnostic tests or other investigations. ()

12. **Intervention.** Means measures to promote health, protect against disease, treat illness in its earliest stages, manage acute and chronic illness, and treat disability. Interventions may include, but are not limited to ordering diagnostic studies, performing direct nursing care, prescribing pharmacologic or non-pharmacologic or other therapies and consultation with or referral to other health care providers. ()

13. **Peer Review Process.** The systematic process by which a qualified peer assesses, monitors, and makes judgments about the quality of care provided to patients measured against established practice standards. Peer review: ()

a. ~~M~~measures on-going practice competency of the advance practice registered nurse (APRN) ~~and:~~ ()

b. ~~i~~s performed by a licensed APRN, physician, physician assistant, or other professional certified by a recognized credentialing organization; ~~and~~ ()

c. ~~P~~eer review ~~f~~focuses on a mutual desire for quality of care and professional growth incorporating attitudes of mutual trust and motivation. ()

14. **Population Focus.** Means the section of the population which the APRN has targeted to practice within. The categories of population foci are: ()

a. ~~f~~Family/individual across the lifespan; ()

b. ~~a~~Adult-gerontology; ()

c. ~~w~~Women's health/gender-related; ()

d. ~~n~~Neonatal; ()

e. ~~p~~Pediatrics; and ()

f. ~~p~~Psychiatric-mental health. ()

15. **Prescriptive and Dispensing Authorization.** Means the legal permission to prescribe, deliver, distribute and dispense pharmacologic and non-pharmacologic agents to a client in compliance with Board rules and applicable federal and state laws. Pharmacologic agents include legend and Schedule II through V controlled substances. ()

16. ~~Referral. Means directing a client to a physician or other health professional or resource.~~ ()

17. **Scope of Practice of Advanced Practice Registered Nurse.** Means those activities that the advanced practice registered nurse may perform. Those activities are defined by the Board according to the advanced practice registered nurse's education, preparation, experience and the parameters set forth by the advanced practice registered nurse's recognized, national certifying organization. ()

18. **Specialization.** Means a more focused area of preparation and practice than that of the APRN role/population foci that is built on established criteria for recognition as a nursing specialty to include, but not limited to, specific patient populations (e.g., elder care, care of post-menopausal women), and specific health care needs (e.g., palliative care, pain management, nephrology). ()

272. -- 279. (RESERVED)

280. STANDARDS OF PRACTICE FOR ADVANCED PRACTICE REGISTERED NURSING.

Commented [NC28]: Collapses a list.

01. Purpose. ()

a. To establish standards essential for safe practice by the advanced practice registered nurse; and ()

b. To serve as a guide for evaluation of advanced practice registered nursing to determine if it is safe and effective. ()

02. Core Standards for All Roles of Advanced Practice Registered Nursing. The advanced practice registered nurse is a licensed independent practitioner who shall practice consistent with the definition of advanced practice registered nursing, recognized national standards and the standards set forth in these rules. ()

a. The advanced practice registered nurse shall provide client services for which the advanced practice registered nurse is educationally prepared and for which competence has been achieved and maintained. ()

b. The advanced practice registered nurse shall recognize their limits of knowledge and experience and consult and collaborate with and refer to other health care professionals as appropriate. ()

c. The advanced practice registered nurse shall evaluate and apply current evidence-based research findings relevant to the advanced nursing practice role. ()

d. The advanced practice registered nurse shall assume responsibility and accountability for health promotion and maintenance as well as the assessment, diagnosis and management of client conditions to include the use of pharmacologic and non-pharmacologic interventions and the prescribing and dispensing of pharmacologic and non-pharmacologic agents. ()

e. The advanced practice registered nurse shall use advanced practice knowledge and skills in teaching and guiding clients and other health care team members. ()

f. The advanced practice registered nurse shall have knowledge of the statutes and rules governing advanced nursing practice, and practice within the established standards for the advanced nursing practice role and population focus. ()

g. The advanced practice registered nurse shall practice consistent with Subsections 400.01 and 400.02 of these rules. ()

03. Certified Nurse-Midwife. In addition to the core standards, the advanced practice registered nurse in the role of certified nurse midwife provides the full range of primary health care services to women throughout the lifespan, including gynecologic care, family planning services, preconception care, prenatal and postpartum care, childbirth, care of the newborn and reproductive health care treatment of the male partners of female clients. ()

04. Clinical Nurse Specialist. In addition to core standards, the advanced practice registered nurse in the role of clinical nurse specialist provides services to patients, care providers and health care delivery systems including, but not limited to, direct care, expert consultation, care coordination, monitoring for quality indicators and facilitating communication between patients, their families, members of the health care team and components of the health care delivery system. ()

05. Certified Nurse Practitioner. In addition to core standards, the advanced practice registered nurse in the role of certified nurse practitioner provides initial and ongoing comprehensive primary care services to clients including, but not limited to, diagnosis and management of acute and chronic disease, and health promotion, disease prevention, health education counseling, and identification and management of the effects of illness on clients and their families. ()

06. Certified Registered Nurse Anesthetist. In addition to core standards, the advanced practice

registered nurse in the role of certified registered nurse anesthetist provides the full spectrum of anesthesia care and anesthesia-related care and services to individuals across the lifespan whose health status may range across the wellness-illness continuum to include healthy persons; persons with immediate, severe or life-threatening illness or injury; and persons with sustained or chronic health conditions. ()

Commented [NC29]: Combine into definitions

07. Documentation of Specialization. Unless exempted under Section 305 of these rules, the advanced practice registered nurse must document competency within their specialty area of practice based upon education, experience and national certification in the role and population focus. ()

281. -- 284. (RESERVED)

285. QUALIFICATIONS FOR ADVANCED PRACTICE REGISTERED NURSE.

To qualify as an advanced practice registered nurse, an applicant shall provide evidence of: ()

01. Current Licensure. Current licensure to practice as a registered nurse in Idaho; ()

02. Completion of Advanced Practice Registered Nurse Program. Successful completion of a graduate or post-graduate advanced practice registered nurse program which is accredited by a national organization recognized by the Board; and ()

03. National Certification. Current national certification by an organization recognized by the Board for the specified APRN role. ()

286. -- 289. (RESERVED)

~~**290. APPLICATION FOR LICENSURE -- ADVANCED PRACTICE REGISTERED NURSE.**~~

~~A completed application for licensure as an advanced practice registered nurse requesting licensure to practice as a certified nurse-midwife, clinical nurse specialist, certified nurse practitioner or certified registered nurse anesthetist consists of a completed board-approved application, all applicable fees and any additional required documentation.~~ ()

291. -- 294. (RESERVED)

295. TEMPORARY LICENSURE -- ADVANCED PRACTICE REGISTERED NURSE.

A temporary license to engage in advanced practice registered nursing may be issued to the following: ()

Commented [NC30]: Combine with other temporary license sections.

01. Applicants Awaiting Initial Certification Examination Results. An otherwise qualified applicant who is eligible to take the first available certification examination following completion of an approved advanced practice registered nurse education program. Verification of registration to write a Board-recognized national certification examination must be received from the national certifying organization. ()

a. Temporary licensure to practice shall be deemed to expire upon failure of the certification examination. An applicant who fails the national certification exam shall not engage in advanced practice registered nursing until such time as all requirements are met. ()

b. An applicant who is granted a temporary license to practice as an advanced practice registered nurse must submit notarized results of the certification examination within ten (10) days of receipt. Failure to submit required documentation shall result in the immediate expiration of the temporary license. ()

c. The temporary license of an applicant who does not write the examination on the date scheduled shall immediately expire and the applicant shall not engage in advanced practice registered nursing until such time as all requirements are met. ()

02. Applicants Whose Certification Has Lapsed. A licensed registered nurse applying for re-entry into advanced registered nursing practice, who is required by the national certifying organization to meet certain specified practice requirements under supervision. The length of and conditions for temporary licensure shall be

determined by the Board. ()

03. Applicants Holding a Temporary Registered Nursing License. An advanced practice registered nurse currently authorized to practice advanced practice registered nursing in another nursing jurisdiction upon issuance of a temporary license to practice as a registered nurse, and upon evidence of current certification as an advanced practice registered nurse from a Board-recognized national certifying organization. ()

04. Applicants Without Required Practice Hours. An advanced practice registered nurse who has not practiced the minimum required period of time during the renewal period may be issued a temporary license in order to acquire the required number of hours and demonstrate ability to safely practice. ()

05. Application Processing. An APRN whose application has been received but is not yet completed required practice hours may be issued a temporary license. ()

06. Term of Temporary License. A temporary license expires at the conclusion of the term for which it is issued, or the issuance of a renewable license, whichever occurs earlier. ()

296. -- 299. (RESERVED)

300. RENEWAL OF ADVANCED PRACTICE REGISTERED NURSE LICENSE.

The advanced practice registered nurse license may be renewed every two (2) years as specified in Section 54-1411, Idaho Code, provided that the advanced practice registered nurse: ()

01. Current Registered Nurse License. Maintains a current registered nurse license or privilege to practice in Idaho. ()

02. Evidence of Certification. Submits evidence of current APRN certification by a national organization recognized by the Board. ()

03. Evidence of Continuing Education. Provides documentation of thirty (30) contact hours of continuing education during the renewal period, which shall include ten (10) contact hours in pharmacology if the nurse has prescriptive authority. ~~Continuing education completed may be that required for renewal of national certification if documentation is submitted confirming the certifying organization's requirement is for at least thirty (30) contact hours.~~ ()

04. Hours of Practice. Attests, on forms provided by the Board, to a minimum of two hundred (200) hours of advanced registered nursing practice within the preceding two (2) year period. ()

05. Peer Review Process. Provides evidence, satisfactory to the Board, of participation in a peer review process acceptable to the Board. ()

06. Exemption From Requirements. Nurse practitioners not certified by a national organization recognized by the Board and approved prior to July 1, 1998 shall be exempt from the requirement set forth in Subsection 300.02 of these rules. ()

301. REINSTATEMENT OF ADVANCED PRACTICE REGISTERED NURSE LICENSE.

An advanced practice registered nurse license may be reinstated as specified in Section 54-1411, Idaho Code, provided that the applicant: ()

01. Current Registered Nurse License. Maintains a current registered nurse license or privilege to practice in Idaho. ()

02. Evidence of Certification. Submits evidence of current APRN certification by a national organization recognized by the Board. ()

03. Fee. Pays the fee specified in Section 900 of these rules. ()

Commented [NC31]: moving this section to renewals.

Commented [NC32]: Relocate to reinstatement

302. -- 304. (RESERVED)

305. PERSONS EXEMPTED FROM ADVANCED PRACTICE REGISTERED NURSING LICENSE REQUIREMENTS.

Commented [NC33]: Combined with other exemptions

01. **Students.** Nothing in these rules prohibits a registered nurse who holds a current license, or privilege, to practice in Idaho and who is enrolled as a matriculated student in a nationally accredited educational program for advanced practice registered nursing from practicing as an advanced practice registered nurse when such practice is an integral part of the advanced practice registered nurse curriculum. ()

02. **Certified Nurse Practitioners Licensed Prior to July 1, 1998.** A certified nurse practitioner authorized to practice prior to July 1, 1998 may satisfy the requirement of Section 280.07 of these rules by documenting competency within their specialty area of practice based upon education, experience and national certification in that specialty or education, experience and approval by the Board. ()

03. **Advanced Practice Registered Nurses Educated Prior to January 1, 2016.** ()

a. An applicant for APRN licensure who completed a nationally accredited undergraduate or certificate APRN program prior to January 1, 2016, does not need to meet the APRN graduate or post-graduate educational requirements for initial licensure contained within Section 285 of these rules. ()

b. A person applying for APRN licensure in Idaho who holds an existing APRN license issued by any nursing jurisdiction, completed their formal APRN education prior to January 1, 2016, and who meets all of the requirements for initial licensure contained within Sections 285 and 286 of these rules except for the APRN graduate or post-graduate educational requirement, may be issued an APRN license by endorsement if at the time the person received their APRN license in the other jurisdiction they would have been eligible for licensure as an APRN in Idaho. ()

306. DISCIPLINARY ENFORCEMENT.

The Board may revoke, suspend or otherwise discipline the advanced practice registered nurse license of a licensee who fails to comply with current recognized scope and standards of practice, who fails to maintain national certification or competency requirements, or who violates the provisions of the Nursing Practice Act or rules of the Board. ()

Commented [NC34]: Relocating to discipline; maybe able to eliminate.

307. -- 314. (RESERVED)

315. PRESCRIPTIVE AND DISPENSING AUTHORIZATION FOR ADVANCED PRACTICE REGISTERED NURSES.

~~01. **Initial Authorization.** An application for the authority to prescribe and dispense pharmacologic and non-pharmacologic agents may be made as part of initial licensure application or by separate application at a later date. Advanced practice registered nurses who complete their APRN graduate or post-graduate educational program after December 31, 2015, will automatically be granted prescriptive and dispensing authority with the issuance of their Idaho license. ()~~

~~a. An advanced practice registered nurse who applies for authorization to prescribe pharmacologic and non-pharmacologic agents within the scope of practice for the advanced practice role, shall: ()~~

~~i. Provide evidence of completion of thirty (30) contact hours of post-basic education in pharmacotherapeutics obtained as part of study within a formal educational program or continuing education program, related to advanced nursing practice; and ()~~

~~ii. Submit a completed, notarized application form provided by the Board. ()~~

~~b. Exceptions to the pharmacotherapeutic education may be approved by the Board. ()~~

Commented [NC35]: Unnecessary. Delete

c. Prescriptions written by [authorized](#) advanced practice registered nurses shall contain all the minimum information required by Idaho Board of Pharmacy statute and administrative rules and applicable federal law as well as the printed name and signature of the nurse prescriber, and the abbreviation for the applicable role of the advanced practice nurse (i.e. “CNP,” “CNM,” “CNS,” or CRNA”). If the prescription is for a controlled substance, it shall also include the DEA registration number and address of the prescriber. ()

~~02. **Temporary Authorization.** The Board may grant temporary prescriptive authority to an applicant who holds a temporary advanced practice registered nurse license and who meets the requirements for initial authorization pursuant to Subsection 315.01 of these rules. ()~~

~~03. **Expiration of Temporary Prescriptive Authorization.** Temporary prescriptive authorization automatically expires on the expiration, revocation, suspension, placement on probation, or denial of any advanced practice registered nurse license. ()~~

04. **Prescribing and Dispensing Authorization.** All [authorized](#) advanced practice registered nurses may prescribe and dispense pharmacologic and non-pharmacologic agents pursuant to applicable state and federal laws. ()

05. **Valid Advanced Practice Registered Nurse/Patient Relationships.** ()

a. An advanced practice registered nurse shall not [prescribe or](#) dispense pharmacologic agents except in the course of [his-their](#) professional practice and when a bona fide advanced practice registered nurse/patient relationship has been established [pursuant to Section 54-1733, Idaho Code](#). A valid relationship will exist when the advanced practice registered nurse has obtained sufficient knowledge of the patient’s medical condition through examination and has assumed responsibility for the health care of the patient. ()

~~b. A valid advanced practice registered nurse/patient relationship is not required when dispensing or prescribing medications under the circumstances set forth at Section 54-1733(4), Idaho Code. ()~~

316. GROUNDS FOR DISCIPLINE OF AN ADVANCED PRACTICE REGISTERED NURSE LICENSE.

In addition to the grounds set forth in Section 54-1413, Idaho Code, and Section 100 of these rules, an advanced practice registered nursing license may be suspended, revoked, placed upon probation, or other disciplinary sanctions imposed by the Board on the following grounds: ()

01. **Prescribing or Dispensing Controlled Substances.** Prescribing, dispensing, or selling any drug classified as a controlled substance to a family member or to [himself/onself](#). For purposes of Section 316 of these rules, “family member” is defined as the licensee’s spouse, child (biological, adopted, or foster), parent, sibling, grandparent, grandchild, or the same relation by marriage. ()

02. **Violating Governing Law.** Violating any state or federal law relating to controlled substances. ()

03. **Outside Scope of Practice.** Prescribing or dispensing outside the scope of the advanced practice registered nurse’s practice. ()

~~04. **Other Than Therapeutic Purposes.** Prescribing or dispensing for other than therapeutic purposes. ()~~

317. -- 319. (RESERVED)

320. RECOGNITION OF NATIONAL CERTIFYING ORGANIZATIONS FOR ADVANCED PRACTICE REGISTERED NURSING.

The Board recognizes advanced practice registered nurse certification organizations that meet criteria as defined by the National Council of State Boards of Nursing. ()

Commented [NC36]: They’re issued together as of 2015. Delete

Commented [NC37]: Relocate to discipline

Commented [NC38]: Definition of board recognized? Move.

321. -- 389. (RESERVED)

390. USE OF TITLES, ABBREVIATIONS, AND DESIGNATIONS FOR THE PRACTICE OF NURSING;

~~01. Title for Graduates. A new graduate issued a temporary license pursuant to Section 040 of these rules can use the title graduate nurse, abbreviated GN, or graduate practical nurse, abbreviated GPN, or graduate nurse-midwife, abbreviated GNM, or graduate clinical nurse specialist, abbreviated GCNS, or graduate nurse practitioner, abbreviated GNP, or graduate nurse anesthetist, abbreviated GNA, whichever is appropriate, until the renewable license is issued. ()~~

~~02. Titles for Advanced Practice Registered Nurses. Individuals who have successfully met all requirements for licensure as an advanced practice registered nurse have the right to use the title corresponding to the role of advanced nursing practice for which the individual is licensed. ()~~

~~a. Individuals who have successfully met all requirements for licensure as a certified nurse-midwife have the right to use the title certified nurse-midwife, abbreviated APRN, CNM. ()~~

~~b. Title of Clinical Nurse Specialist. Individuals who have successfully met all requirements for licensure as a clinical nurse specialist have the right to use the title clinical nurse specialist, abbreviated APRN, CNS. ()~~

~~c. Individuals who have successfully met all requirements for licensure as a certified nurse practitioner have the right to use the title certified nurse practitioner, abbreviated APRN, CNP. ()~~

~~d. Individuals who have successfully met all requirements for licensure as a certified registered nurse anesthetist have the right to use the title certified registered nurse anesthetist, abbreviated APRN, CRNA. ()~~

~~03. Registered Nurse Title. Individuals who have successfully met all requirements for licensure as registered nurse have the right to use the title Registered Nurse, abbreviated RN. ()~~

~~04. Licensed Practical Nurse Title. Individuals who have successfully met all requirements for licensure as a practical nurse have the right to use the title Licensed Practical Nurse, abbreviated LPN. ()~~

391. -- 399. (RESERVED)

400. DECISION-MAKING MODEL.

The decision-making model is the process by which a licensed nurse evaluates whether a particular act is within the legal scope of that nurse's practice and determines whether to delegate the performance of a particular nursing task in a given setting. This model applies to all licensure categories permitting active practice, regardless of practice setting. ()

01. Determining Scope of Practice. To evaluate whether a specific act is within the legal scope of nursing practice, a licensed nurse shall determine whether: ()

a. The act is expressly prohibited by the Nursing Practice Act, or the act is limited to the scope of practice of advanced practice registered nurses or to licensed registered nurses, or the act is prohibited by other laws; ()

b. The act was taught as a part of the nurse's educational institution's required curriculum and the nurse possesses current clinical skills; ()

~~c. The act does not exceed any existing policies and procedures established by the nurse's employer; ()~~

Commented [NC39]: For Consideration at 7/14/22 meeting; Move to definitions. The model practice act has language to consider:
https://www.ncsbn.org/21_Model_Act.pdf

d. The act is consistent with standards of practice published by a national specialty nursing organization or supported by recognized nursing literature or reputable published research and the nurse can document successful completion of additional education through an organized program of study including supervised clinical practice or equivalent demonstrated competency; ()

~~e. The employment setting/agency has established policies and procedures or job descriptions authorizing performance of the act; and~~ ()

f. Performance of the act is within the accepted standard of care that would be provided in a similar situation by a reasonable and prudent nurse with similar education and experience and the nurse is prepared to accept the consequences of the act. ()

02. Deciding to Delegate. When delegating nursing care, the licensed nurse retains accountability for the delegated acts and the consequences of delegation. Before delegating any task the nurse shall: ()

a. Determine that the acts to be delegated are not expressly prohibited by the Nursing Practice Act or Board rules and that the activities are consistent with job descriptions or policies of the practice setting; ()

b. Assess the client's status and health care needs prior to delegation, taking into consideration the complexity of assessments, monitoring required and the degree of physiological or psychological instability; ()

c. Exercise professional judgment to determine the safety of the delegated activities, to whom the acts may be delegated, and the potential for harm; ()

d. Consider the nature of the act, the complexity of the care needed, the degree of critical thinking required and the predictability of the outcome of the act to be performed; ()

e. Consider the impact of timeliness of care, continuity of care, and the level of interaction required with the patient and family; ()

f. Consider the type of technology employed in providing care and the knowledge and skills required to effectively use the technology, including relevant infection control and safety issues; ()

g. Determine that the person to whom the act is being delegated has documented education or training to perform the activity and is currently competent to perform the act; and ()

h. Provide appropriate instruction for performance of the act. ()

03. Delegating to UAPs. ()

a. The nursing care tasks that may be delegated to UAPs shall be stated in writing in the practice setting. Decisions concerning delegation will be determined in accordance with the provisions of Section 400 of these rules. UAPs may complement the licensed nurse in the performance of nursing functions, but cannot substitute for the licensed nurse; UAPs cannot redelegate a delegated act. ()

b. Where permitted by law, after completion of a Board-approved training program, UAPs in care settings may assist patients who cannot independently self-administer medications, provided that a plan of care has been developed by a licensed registered nurse, and the act has been delegated by a licensed nurse. Assistance with medication may include: breaking a scored tablet, crushing a tablet, instilling eye, ear or nose drops, giving medication through a pre-mixed nebulizer inhaler or gastric (non-nasogastric) tube, assisting with oral or topical medications and insertion of suppositories. ()

04. Monitoring Delegation. Subsequent to delegation, the licensed nurse shall: ()

a. Evaluate the patient's response and the outcome of the delegated act, and take such further action as necessary; and ()

b. Determine the degree of supervision required and evaluate whether the activity is completed in a manner that meets acceptable outcomes. The degree of supervision shall be based upon the health status and stability of the patient, the complexity of the care and the knowledge and competence of the individual to whom the activity is delegated. ()

401. LICENSED REGISTERED NURSE (RN).

In addition to providing hands-on nursing care, licensed registered nurses work and serve in a broad range of capacities including, but not limited to, regulation, delegation, management, administration, teaching, and case management. Licensed registered nurses, also referred to as registered nurses or as "RNs," are expected to exercise competency in judgment, decision making, implementation of nursing interventions, delegation of functions or responsibilities, and administration of medications and treatments prescribed by legally authorized persons. ()

01. Standards of Practice. A licensed registered nurse adheres to the decision-making model set forth in Section 400 of these rules. ()

02. Functions. A partial listing of tasks within the licensed registered nurse's function follows. This listing is for illustrative purposes only, it is not exclusive. The licensed registered nurse: ()

a. Assesses the health status of individuals and groups; ()

b. Utilizes data obtained by assessment to identify and document nursing diagnoses which serve as a basis for the plan of nursing care; ()

c. Collaborates with the patient, family, and health team members; ()

d. Develops and documents a plan for nursing intervention based on assessment, analysis of data, identified nursing diagnoses and patient outcomes; ()

e. Is accountable and responsible for implementation of planned and prescribed nursing care; ()

f. Maintains safe and effective nursing care by: ()

i. Maintaining a safe environment; ()

ii. Evaluating patient status and instituting appropriate therapy or procedures which might be required in emergency situations to stabilize the patient's condition or prevent serious complications in accordance with standard procedures established by the policy-making body in the health care setting, including but not limited to administration of intravenous drugs and starting intravenous therapy based on protocols if the patient has been assessed and determined to be in peril; ()

iii. Acting as a patient's advocate; ()

iv. Applying principles of asepsis and infection control and universal standards when providing nursing care; ()

v. Implementing orders for medications and treatments issued by an authorized prescriber; and ()

vi. Providing information and making recommendations to patients and others in accordance with employer policies; ()

g. Utilizes identified goals and outcomes to evaluate responses to interventions; ()

Commented [NC40]: To be discussed at 7/14/2022 meeting

- h. Collaborates with other health professionals by: ()
- i. Communicating significant changes in a patient's status or responses to appropriate health team professionals; ()
- ii. Coordinating the plan of care with other health team professionals; and ()
- iii. Consulting with nurses and other health team members as necessary; ()
- i. Teaches the theory and practice of nursing; and ()
- j. Facilitates, mentors and guides the practice of nursing formally and informally in practice settings. ()
- k. Engages in other interfaces with healthcare providers and other workers in settings where there is not a structured nursing organization and in settings where health care plays a secondary role, where the nurse needs to identify the nursing role and responsibility for the particular type of interface, for example, teaching, supervising, consulting, advising, etc. ()

03. Chief Executive Role. A licensed registered nurse functioning in a chief executive role is accountable and responsible for: ()

- a. Prescribing, directing and evaluating the quality of nursing services including, but not limited to, staff development and quality improvement; ()
- b. Assuring that organizational policies and procedures, job descriptions and standards of nursing practice conform to the Nursing Practice Act and nursing practice rules; ()
- c. Assuring that the knowledge, skills and abilities of nursing care staff are assessed and that nursing care activities do not exceed the legally defined boundaries of practice; and ()
- d. Assuring that documentation of all aspects of the nursing organization is maintained. ()

04. Management Role. A licensed registered nurse functioning in a management role is accountable and responsible for: ()

- a. The quality and quantity of nursing care provided by nursing personnel under their supervision; ()
- b. Managing and coordinating nursing care in accordance with established guidelines for delegation; and ()
- c. Providing leadership in formulating, interpreting, implementing, and evaluating the objectives and policies of nursing practice. ()

402. LICENSED REGISTERED NURSE FUNCTIONING IN SPECIALTY AREAS.

Commented [NC41]: To be discussed at 7/14/22 meeting

01. Extended Functions. A licensed registered nurse may carry out functions beyond the basic educational preparation described in Sections 600 through 681 of these rules under certain conditions. ()

02. Conditions for Licensed Registered Nurses Functioning in Specialty Practice Areas. A licensed registered nurse may carry out functions defined within parameters of a nursing specialty that meets criteria approved by the American Board of Nursing Specialties (ABNS) or the National Commission for Certifying Agencies (NCCA) of the National Organization for Competency Assurance (NOCA) when the nurse: ()

- a. Can document successful completion of additional education through an organized program of

study including supervised clinical experience or equivalent demonstrated competence consistent with provisions of Section 400 of these rules; and ()

b. Conforms to recognized nursing specialty practice parameters, characters, and standards for practice of the specialty. ()

403. -- 459. (RESERVED)

460. LICENSED PRACTICAL NURSE (LPN).

Licensed practical nurses function in dependent roles. Licensed practical nurses, also referred to as LPNs, provide nursing care at the delegation of a licensed registered nurse, licensed physician, or licensed dentist pursuant to rules established by the Board. The stability of the patient's environment, the patient's clinical state, and the predictability of the outcome determine the degree of direction and supervision that must be provided to the licensed practical nurse. ()

Commented [NC42]: To be discussed at 7/14/22 meeting

01. **Standards.** The licensed practical nurse shall be personally accountable and responsible for all actions taken in carrying out nursing activities and adheres to the decision-making model set forth in Section 400 of these rules. ()

02. **Functions.** A partial listing of some of the functions that are included within the legal definition of licensed practical nurse, Section 54-1402(3), Idaho Code, (Nursing Practice Act) follows. This list is for example only, it is not complete. The licensed practical nurse: ()

a. Contributes to the assessment of health status by collecting, reporting and recording objective and subjective data; ()

b. Participates in the development and modification of the plan of care; ()

c. Implements aspects of the plan of care; ()

d. Maintains safe and effective nursing care; ()

e. Participates in the evaluation of responses to interventions; ()

f. Fulfills charge nurse responsibilities in health care facilities as allowed by state and federal law; ()

g. Delegates to others as allowed by application of the decision-making model; and ()

h. Accepts delegated assignments only as allowed by application of the decision-making model. ()

i. Engages in other interfaces with healthcare providers and other workers in settings where there is not a structured nursing organization and in settings where health care plays a secondary role, where the nurse needs to identify the nursing role and responsibility for the particular type of interface, for example, teaching, supervising, consulting, advising, etc. ()

461. -- 490. (RESERVED)

491. TECHNICIANS/TECHNOLOGISTS.

Commented [NC43]: For discussion at 7/14/22 meeting

01. **Functions.** Technicians/technologists may perform limited nursing functions within the ordinary, customary, and usual roles in their fields and are exempted from licensure by the Board under Section 54-1412, Idaho Code, provided they are: ()

a. Enrolled in or have completed a formal training program acceptable to the Board; or ()

b. Registered with or certified by a national organization acceptable to the Board. ()

02. **Supervision.** Technicians/technologists providing basic nursing care services on an organized nursing unit in an institutional setting must function under the supervision of a licensed registered nurse. ()

492. -- 599. (RESERVED)

600. NURSING EDUCATION FOR REGISTERED AND PRACTICAL NURSES.

601. PURPOSE OF APPROVAL.

To assure safe practice of nursing by establishing standards, criteria, and curriculum requirements for education programs preparing persons for the practice of nursing, and for enhancing the knowledge and skills of those in practice. ()

01. **Preparation of Graduates.** To ensure that graduates of nursing education programs are prepared for safe and effective nursing practice. ()

02. **Guide for Development.** To serve as a guide for the development of new nursing education programs. ()

03. **Continued Improvement.** To foster the continued improvement of established nursing education programs. ()

04. **Evaluation Criteria.** To provide criteria for the evaluation of new and established nursing education programs. ()

05. **Eligibility for Licensing Examination.** To assure eligibility for admission to the licensing examination for nurses, and to facilitate interstate endorsement of graduates of Board-approved nursing education programs. ()

Commented [NC44]: Purpose doesn't belong in rule generally, delete

602. NURSING EDUCATIONAL PROGRAMS

01. Accreditation. To qualify as an approved education program for the purpose of qualifying graduates for licensure, the nursing education program must be currently accredited by the Accreditation Commission for Education in Nursing, or the Commission on Collegiate Nursing Education, or the Commission for Nursing Education Accreditation.

02. Limited-Time Approval for Nursing Education Programs.

a. Prior to obtaining the accreditation described in Rule 601.01, a nursing education program may submit a board-approved application to qualify for a limited-time program approval demonstrating initial implementation of accreditation standards and continued compliance towards obtaining the accreditation.

b. A nursing education program with limited-time approval may only qualify graduates for licensure until the program becomes accredited or until five years from the date of the initial application for accreditation, whichever is less.

c. A nursing education program with limited-time approval under Subsection .02.a. must provide an annual report.

d. A nursing education program with limited-time approval must have each student prior to enrollment execute a disclosure which, at a minimum, states the following:

i. “The nursing education program in which you are enrolling has not yet been accredited. The program is being reviewed by the [insert name of accrediting body]. This program is allowed to enroll new students because it meets the requirements of IDAPA 24.34.01.602.02.a. Any education you complete before a final determination by the [insert name of accrediting body] will satisfy associated state requirements for licensure. If the [insert name of accrediting body] ultimately determines that the program does not qualify for accreditation, you will not be made eligible for the NCLEX by the State of Idaho.”

e. A nursing education program with limited-time approval under Subsection .02.a. may not enroll any new students into the program beyond five years from the date of the initial application for accreditation unless the program has a final site visit scheduled with a nursing program accreditor.

03. Board Notification

a. If an accredited program or limited-time program seeking accreditation receives notice or determines that its accreditation status is in jeopardy, the institution offering the program must immediately notify the Board of its accreditation status; immediately and verifiably notify each enrolled student in writing of the program's accreditation status, including: the estimated date when the accrediting body will make its final determination as to the program's accreditation; the potential impact of a program's accreditation status on the graduate's ability to secure licensure and employment or transfer academic credits to another institution in the future; and attempt negotiations with other academic institutions to establish a transfer articulation agreement.

b. If a program with limited-time approval fails to achieve accreditation within the timeframe specified in Rule 602.02, or if a program loses its accreditation, the institution offering the program shall: submit a written report of official notice of losing accreditation or failing to achieve accreditation to the Board within ten days of receiving formal notification from the accrediting body; notify each matriculated and pre-enrollment nursing student about the program's accreditation status; inform each nursing student who will graduate from a non-accredited program that they will not be eligible for initial licensure through the state; and provide the Board with a written plan to close the program and cease operations to the Board within ten days of receiving formal notice of losing accreditation from the program's accrediting body.

602. APPROVAL OF A NEW EDUCATIONAL PROGRAM.

01. Educational Programs. ()

a. Any university, college, or other institution wishing to establish a nursing education program must make application to the Board on forms supplied by the Board. The following information is to be included with the initial application: ()

i. Purpose for establishing the nursing education program; ()

- ii. Community needs and studies made, as basis for establishing a nursing education program; ()
 - iii. Type of program; ()
 - iv. Accreditation status, relationship of educational program to parent institution; ()
 - v. Financial provision for the educational program; ()
 - vi. Potential student enrollment; ()
 - vii. Provision for qualified faculty; ()
 - viii. Proposed clinical facilities and other physical facilities; and ()
 - ix. Proposed time schedule for initiating the program. ()
- b. A representative of the Board will visit the educational and clinical facilities and then submit a written report to the Board. ()
- c. Representatives of the parent institution must meet with the Board to review the application within ninety (90) days of the conduct of the initial survey visit. ()
- d. Following the Board's review, the parent institution will be notified of the Board's decision within thirty (30) days of the review. ()
- e. Following the appointment of a qualified nurse administrator, a minimum period of twelve (12) months is necessary for planning to be completed before the first class of students is admitted to the program. ()
- f. Provisional approval may be applied for when the following conditions have been met: ()
- i. A qualified nurse administrator has been appointed; ()
 - ii. There are sufficient qualified faculty to initiate the program; ()
 - iii. The curriculum and plans for its implementation have been developed, including tentative clinical affiliation agreements; and ()
 - iv. Program policies have been developed. ()
- g. Provisional approval must be granted before the first students are admitted to the nursing program. ()
- h. Students can be admitted to the nursing program once provisional approval is granted. ()
- i. A representative of the Board will make a follow up survey visit to the educational program and submit a written report to the Board. ()
- ii. Following the Board's review, the parent institution will be notified of the Board's decision within thirty (30) days. ()
- iii. Following its review, the Board may grant full approval, if all conditions have been met; or conditional approval, if all standards have not been met, with such conditions and requirements as the Board may designate to insure compliance with standards within the designated time period; or denial of approval, if standards

have not been met. ()

i. Full approval will be applied for and granted within a three (3) year period following eligibility. ()

603. CONTINUANCE OF FULL APPROVAL OF EDUCATIONAL PROGRAM

01. The Board may rescind full approval that has been granted to a nursing education program that consistently fails to meet the Board's standards, as evidenced in the annual report, failure to include a Board representative in site visits, or unacceptable performance on a licensing examination for each program with a pass rate of less than eighty percent (80%) for its first-time writers in any given year for two consecutive calendar years.

603. CONTINUANCE OF FULL APPROVAL OF EDUCATIONAL PROGRAM.

01. Continuing Full Approval. ()

a. A certificate of continuing full approval will be granted for up to eight (8) years to nursing education programs that consistently meet the Board's standards, as evidenced by: ()

i. Information included in the annual report to the Board; ()

ii. Information obtained by a Board representative through consultation visits; and ()

iii. Acceptable performance on the licensing examination for each program shall be a pass rate of eighty percent (80%) for its first-time writers in any given calendar year. A program whose pass rate falls below eighty percent (80%) for first-time writers in any two (2) consecutive calendar years shall: ()

(1) Present to the Board a plan for identifying possible contributing factors and for correcting any identified deficiencies; and ()

(2) Submit periodic progress reports on a schedule determined by the Board. ()

b. To ensure continuing compliance with the Board's standards, each approved nursing education program will submit an annual report to the Board. Based on its findings the Board may: ()

i. Request additional information from the nursing education program. ()

ii. Conduct an on-site review of the nursing education program. ()

iii. Request a full survey of the nursing education program. ()

c. Written reports of the survey will be submitted to the Board for review and acceptance. Copies of the report and recommendations will then be sent to the educational institution within thirty (30) days of the review. ()

d. Nursing education programs that do not meet the standards of the Board may be placed on conditional approval status, with such conditions and requirements as the Board may designate to ensure compliance with standards within a reasonable time period. ()

e. At the end of the period of conditional approval, full approval may be restored if the required conditions have been met, or approval may be withdrawn if the required conditions have not been met. Upon petition and written documentation by the nursing education program of extenuating circumstances, the Board may consider extending the period of conditional approval. The school must submit documentation within ten (10) days of notification of withdrawal of full approval. ()

f. Following notification of the Board's decision to place a program on conditional approval or to withdraw program approval, the educational program will have ten (10) days in which to request a hearing. Upon receipt of a request for hearing, the Board's action will be stayed until the matter is heard. Hearings shall be conducted in the same manner as disciplinary hearings, in accordance with Title 67, Chapter 52, Idaho Code.

604. Discontinuance Of An Educational Program.

When an educational institution plans to discontinue its education program, the following procedure must be used:

01. **Notify in Writing.** Notify the Board in writing at least one (1) academic year prior to the closure; and

02. **Follow Plan.** Follow institutional plan for program closure including:

a. Maintenance of program standards until last class has graduated; and

b. Provision for disposition of student records.

605. 629. (Reserved)

630. Philosophy And Objectives Of Educational Program.

The nursing education program shall have statements of philosophy and objectives that are consistent with those of the parent institution and with the law governing the practice of nursing.

631. Administration Of Educational Program.

01. **Administration of Educational Programs.**

a. The educational program in nursing shall be an integral part of an accredited institution of higher learning.

b. There shall be an institutional organizational design that demonstrates the relationship of the program to the administration and to comparable programs within the institution, and that clearly delineates the lines of authority, responsibility, and channels of communication. The program faculty are given the opportunity to participate in the governance of the program and the institution.

i. Qualifications, rights, and responsibilities of faculty are addressed in written personnel policies which are consistent with those of the parent institution as well as those of other programs within the institution.

ii. Faculty workloads shall be consistent with responsibilities identified in Section 644 of these rules.

c. The program must have an organizational design with clearly defined authority, responsibility, and channels of communication that assures both faculty and student involvement.

d. Administrative responsibility and control shall be delegated to the nursing education administrator by the parent institution.

e. The program must have a written purpose that is consistent with the mission of the institution. The program must have written policies that are congruent with the institution's policies and are periodically reviewed.

Formatted: Body

Formatted: Body

Formatted: Body

Formatted: Body

~~632. — FINANCIAL SUPPORT OF EDUCATIONAL PROGRAM FOR PRACTICAL NURSE, REGISTERED NURSE, AND ADVANCED PRACTICE REGISTERED NURSE.~~

~~There must be evidence of financial support and resources adequate to achieve the purpose of the program. Resources include: facilities, equipment, supplies, and qualified administrative, instructional, and support personnel and services. (—)~~

~~633. — RECORDS OF EDUCATIONAL PROGRAM.~~

~~The nursing education program structure shall provide for pre-admission and current records for each student while enrolled. Final records for each student shall be maintained on a permanent basis in accordance with the policies of the parent institution. (—)~~

~~634. — 639. — (RESERVED)~~

~~640. — FACULTY QUALIFICATIONS.~~

~~01. — Practical Nurse Program Faculty Qualifications. Nursing faculty who have primary responsibility for planning, implementing, and evaluating curriculum in a program leading to licensure as a practical nurse shall have: (—)~~

~~a. — A current, unencumbered license to practice as a registered nurse in this state; (—)~~

~~b. — A minimum of a baccalaureate degree with a major in nursing; and (—)~~

~~c. — Evidence of nursing practice experience. (—)~~

~~02. — Registered Nurse Program Faculty Qualifications. There shall be sufficient faculty to achieve the purpose of the program. (—)~~

~~a. — Nursing faculty who have primary responsibility for planning, implementing, and evaluating curriculum in a program leading to licensure as a registered nurse shall have: (—)~~

~~i. — A current, unencumbered license to practice as a registered nurse in this state; (—)~~

~~ii. — A minimum of a master's degree with a major in nursing; and (—)~~

~~iii. — Evidence of nursing practice experience. (—)~~

~~b. — Additional support faculty necessary to accomplish program objectives shall have: (—)~~

~~i. — A current, unencumbered license to practice as a registered nurse in this state; (—)~~

~~ii. — A minimum of a baccalaureate degree with a major in nursing; and (—)~~

~~iii. — A plan approved by the Board for accomplishment of the master's of nursing within three (3) years of appointment to the faculty position. (—)~~

~~03. — Advanced Practice Registered Nurse Program Faculty Qualifications. There shall be sufficient faculty to achieve the purpose of the program. Faculty who have primary responsibility for planning, implementing and evaluating curriculum in a program preparing individuals to license as an advanced practice registered nurse shall have: (—)~~

~~a. — A current, unencumbered license to practice as a registered nurse in this state; and (—)~~

~~b. — A graduate degree or post-graduate degree in nursing; (—)~~

~~c. — An advanced practice registered nurse license and national certification if responsible for courses (—)~~

in a specific advanced practice registered nurse role and population; and ()

d. Evidence of advanced registered nursing practice experience. ()

04. ~~Non-clinical Nursing Courses Faculty Qualifications.~~ Interprofessional faculty teaching non-clinical nursing course shall have advanced preparation appropriate for the content being taught. ()

05. ~~Clinical Preceptors in Registered Nurse, Practical Nurse, and Advanced Practice Registered Nurse Programs.~~ Clinical preceptors may be used to enhance clinical learning experiences. ()

a. Clinical preceptors in registered and practical nurse programs shall be licensed for nursing practice at or above the license role for which the student is preparing. ()

b. Clinical preceptors in advanced practice registered nurse programs shall be licensed to practice as an advanced practice registered nurse (APRN), a physician (MD or DO), or a physician assistant (PA) in an area of practice relevant to the educational course objectives. ()

c. Student Preceptor ratio shall be appropriate to accomplishment of learning objectives; to provide for patient safety; and to the complexity of the clinical situation. ()

d. Criteria for selecting preceptors shall be in writing. ()

e. Functions and responsibilities of the preceptor shall be clearly delineated in a written agreement between the agency, the preceptor, and the educational program. ()

f. The faculty shall be responsible to: ()

i. Make arrangements with agency personnel in advance of the clinical experience, providing information such as numbers of students to be in the agency at a time, dates and times scheduled for clinical experience, faculty supervision to be provided, and arrange for formal orientation of preceptors. ()

ii. Inform agency personnel of faculty defined objectives and serve as a guide for selecting students' learning experiences and making assignments. ()

iii. Monitor students' assignments, make periodic site visits to the agency, evaluate students' performance on a regular basis with input from the student and from the preceptor, and be available by telecommunication during students' scheduled clinical time. ()

g. Provide direct supervision, by either a qualified faculty person or an experienced registered nurse employee of the agency, during initial home visits and whenever the student is implementing a nursing skill for the first time or a nursing skill with which the student has had limited experience. ()

07. ~~Continued Study.~~ The parent institution will support and make provisions for continued professional development of the faculty. ()

641. FACULTY.

01. ~~Numbers Needed.~~ There shall be sufficient faculty with educational preparation and nursing expertise to meet the objectives and purposes of the nursing education program. ()

a. Number of faculty shall be sufficient to design and implement the curriculum necessary to prepare students to function in a rapidly changing healthcare environment. ()

b. Number of faculty in the clinical setting shall be sufficient in number to assure patient safety and meet student learning needs. ()

02. ~~Faculty Student Ratio.~~ There shall be no more than ten (10) students for every faculty person in

the clinical agencies. Deviations may be presented for approval with the program's annual report to the Board with written justification assuring client safety and supporting accomplishment of program objectives. ()

642. (RESERVED)

643. ADMINISTRATOR RESPONSIBILITIES AND QUALIFICATIONS.

01. Administrator Responsibilities. The administrator provides the leadership and is accountable for the administration, planning, implementation, and evaluation of the program. The administrator's responsibilities include, but are not limited to: ()

a. Development and maintenance of an environment conducive to the teaching and learning processes; ()

b. Liaison with and maintenance of the relationship with administrative and other units within the institution; ()

c. Leadership within the faculty for the development and implementation of the curriculum; ()

d. Preparation and administration of the program budget; ()

e. Facilitation of faculty recruitment, development, performance review, promotion, and retention; ()

f. Liaison with and maintenance of the relationship with the Board; and ()

g. Facilitation of cooperative agreements with practice sites. ()

02. Administrator Qualifications. The administrator of the program shall be a licensed registered nurse, with a current unencumbered license to practice in this state, and with the additional education and experience necessary to direct the program. ()

a. Practical Nurse Administrator. The administrator in a program preparing for practical nurse licensure shall: ()

i. Hold a minimum of a graduate degree with a major in nursing; and ()

ii. Have evidence of experience in education, administration, and practice sufficient to administer the program. ()

b. Registered Nurse Administrator. The administrator in a program preparing for registered nurse licensure shall: ()

i. Hold a minimum of a graduate degree with a major in nursing and meet institutional requirements; and ()

ii. Have evidence of experience in education, administration, and practice sufficient to administer the program. ()

c. Advanced Practice Registered Nurse Administrator. The administrator in a program preparing for advanced practice registered nursing shall: ()

i. Hold a graduate and post-graduate degree, one (1) of which is in nursing; and ()

ii. Have evidence of experience in education, administration, and practice sufficient to administer the program. ()

~~03. Numbers of Administrators Needed.~~ There shall be at least one (1) qualified nursing administrator for each nursing education department or division. In institutions that offer nursing education programs for more than one (1) level of preparation and where the scope of administrative responsibility so requires, there shall be an individual administrator for each nursing education program. ()

644. FACULTY RESPONSIBILITIES.

~~01. Faculty Responsibilities.~~ Nursing faculty responsibilities include, but are not limited to the following: ()

~~a. Assess, plan, implement, evaluate, and modify the program based on sociological and environmental indicators; ()~~

~~b. Design, implement, evaluate, and update the curriculum using a written plan; ()~~

~~c. Develop, implement, evaluate, and update policies for student admission, progression, retention, and graduation in keeping with the policies of the school; ()~~

~~d. Participate in academic advisement and guidance of students; ()~~

~~e. Provide theoretical instruction and practice experiences; ()~~

~~f. Select, monitor, and evaluate preceptors and the student learning experiences; ()~~

~~g. Evaluate student achievement of curricular outcomes related to nursing knowledge and practice; ()~~

~~h. Evaluate teaching effectiveness; ()~~

~~i. Participate in activities that facilitate maintaining the faculty members' own nursing competence and professional expertise in the area of teaching responsibility, including instructional methodology; ()~~

~~j. Participate in other scholarly activities, including research, consistent with institutional and professional requirements; and ()~~

~~k. Participate in the organization of the program and institution. ()~~

645. – 659. (RESERVED)

660. STUDENTS, EDUCATIONAL PROGRAM.

~~01. Student Policies.~~ Student policies should facilitate mobility and articulation and be consistent with the educational standards of the parent institution. Student policies in relation to the following must be in writing and available: ()

~~a. Admission, readmission, progression, retention, graduation, dismissal, and withdrawal; ()~~

~~b. Physical, mental health, and legal standards required by affiliate agencies and the law governing the practice of nursing; ()~~

~~c. Student responsibilities; ()~~

~~d. Student rights and grievance procedures; and ()~~

~~e. Student opportunity to participate in program governance and evaluation. ()~~

~~661. — 679. — (RESERVED)~~

~~680. — CURRICULUM, EDUCATIONAL PROGRAM.~~

~~01. — Student Competence. ()~~

~~a. — Students enrolled in a practical nursing program shall be provided the opportunity to acquire and demonstrate the knowledge, skills, and abilities for safe and effective nursing practice. The graduate from a practical nurse program is responsible and accountable to practice according to the standards of practice for the licensed practical nurse as defined in Section 460 of these rules. ()~~

~~b. — Students enrolled in a registered nurse program shall be provided the opportunity to acquire and demonstrate the knowledge, skills, and abilities for safe and effective nursing practice. The graduate from a registered nurse program is responsible and accountable to practice according to the standards of practice for the registered nurse as defined in Section 401 of these rules. ()~~

~~c. — Students enrolled in advanced practice registered nursing education shall be provided the opportunity to acquire and demonstrate the knowledge, skills, and abilities for safe and effective advanced nursing practice. The graduate from an advanced practice registered nursing program is responsible and accountable to practice according to the standards for the advanced practice nursing role for which the nurse is prepared as defined in Section 280 of these rules. ()~~

~~02. — Program Evaluation. The program shall have a plan for total program evaluation that includes, but is not limited to the following: organization and administration, faculty, students, curriculum, and performance of graduates. Implementation of the plan and use of findings for relevant decision making must be evident. ()~~

~~681. — CURRICULUM REQUIREMENTS FOR NURSING EDUCATION PROGRAMS.~~

~~01. — General Curriculum. For licensed practical nurses, registered nurses, and advanced practice registered nurses the general curriculum is as follows: ()~~

~~a. — Be planned, implemented, and evaluated by the faculty with provisions for student input; ()~~

~~b. — Reflect the mission and purpose of the nursing education program; ()~~

~~c. — Be organized logically and sequenced appropriately; ()~~

~~d. — Facilitate articulation for horizontal and vertical mobility; ()~~

~~e. — Have a syllabus for each nursing course; ()~~

~~f. — Have written, measurable terminal outcomes that reflect the role of the graduate; and ()~~

~~g. — Be responsive to changing healthcare environment. ()~~

~~02. — Curriculum Changes. Major curriculum changes, as defined in Section 700 of these rules, will be submitted to the Board for approval prior to implementation. ()~~

~~03. — Practice Sites. The program will have sufficient correlated practice experiences to assure development of nursing competencies. ()~~

~~04. — Practical Nurse Curriculum. The curriculum includes: ()~~

~~a. — Nursing didactic content and practice experience that establish the knowledge base for demonstrating beginning competency; and ()~~

_____ b. _____ Integrated, combined or separate coursework from the following academic disciplines and meets requirements for the credential with a major in practical nursing: _____ ()

_____ i. _____ Communication and information systems concepts; _____ ()

_____ ii. _____ Behavioral and social science concepts that serve as a framework for understanding growth and development throughout the life cycle, human behavior, interpersonal relationships, and cultural diversity; _____ ()

_____ iii. _____ Physical and biological sciences concepts that help the students gain an understanding of the principles of scientific theory and computation; _____ ()

_____ iv. _____ Nursing concepts that provide the basis for understanding the principles of nursing care and appropriate and sufficient correlated nursing practice experiences to assure development of competencies as a member of the interdisciplinary team; _____ ()

_____ v. _____ Concepts regarding legal, managerial, economic, and ethical issues related to responsibilities of the practical nurse; and _____ ()

_____ vi. _____ Courses to meet the school's general education requirements for the credential awarded. _____ ()

_____ **05. Registered Nurse Curriculum.** The curriculum includes: _____ ()

_____ a. _____ Nursing didactic content and practice experience that establish the knowledge base for demonstrating beginning competency related to: _____ ()

_____ i. _____ Nursing practice; _____ ()

_____ ii. _____ Systems thinking and interdisciplinary team function; and _____ ()

_____ iii. _____ The promotion and restoration of optimal patient health throughout the lifespan in a variety of primary, secondary and tertiary settings focusing on individuals, groups, and communities. _____ ()

_____ b. _____ Integrated, combined or separate coursework from the following academic disciplines and meets requirements for a degree with a major in nursing: _____ ()

_____ i. _____ Concepts in written and oral communication, values clarification, scientific inquiry, computation, and informatics; _____ ()

_____ ii. _____ Behavioral and social sciences concepts that serve as a framework for the understanding of growth and development throughout the life cycle, human behavior, interpersonal relationships, cultural diversity, and economics related to the social context of healthcare; _____ ()

_____ iii. _____ Physical and biological sciences concepts that help the student gain an understanding of the principles of scientific theory; _____ ()

_____ iv. _____ Arts and humanities concepts that develop the aesthetic, ethical, and intellectual capabilities of the student; _____ ()

_____ v. _____ Concepts regarding research, nursing theory, legal and ethical issues, trends in nursing, principles of education and learning, and professional responsibilities; _____ ()

_____ vi. _____ Experiences that promote the development of leadership and management skills, interdisciplinary and professional socialization; and _____ ()

_____ vii. _____ Courses to meet the school's general education requirements for the academic degree. _____ ()

~~06. — Advanced Practice Registered Nursing Program Curriculum. The curriculum includes: (—)~~

~~a. — Content necessary to prepare the graduate for practice consistent with defined standards for advanced nursing practice; and (—)~~

~~b. — Content from nursing and related academic disciplines and meet requirements for a graduate degree with a major in nursing: (—)~~

~~i. — Advanced theory and research in nursing, biological and behavioral sciences, interdisciplinary education, cultural diversity, economics and informatics sufficient to practice as a graduate prepared registered nurse; (—)~~

~~ii. — Legal, ethical, and professional responsibilities of a graduate prepared registered nurse; (—)~~

~~iii. — Didactic content and supervised practice experience relevant to the nursing focus of the graduate specialty; and (—)~~

~~iv. — Courses to meet the school's requirements for the graduate degree. (—)~~

~~682. — 699. — (RESERVED)~~

~~700. — CURRICULUM CHANGE, EDUCATIONAL PROGRAM.~~

~~Any proposed curriculum revision that involves major changes in the philosophy and objectives, significant course content changes, or changes in the length of the program, shall be submitted to and approved by the Board prior to implementation. Minor curriculum changes such as redistribution of nursing course content or slight increase or decrease in the number of theory and clinical hours must be reported to the Board in the Annual Report, but do not require Board approval. Curriculum revision that alters existing articulation agreements must be approved by the State Board of Education prior to implementation. (—)~~

~~701. — 729. — (RESERVED)~~

~~730. — PRACTICE SITES.~~

~~The program must have sufficient practice experiences to assure development of nursing competencies. (—)~~

~~01. — Approval by Other Agencies. Cooperating agencies shall be approved by the recognized accreditation, evaluation or licensing body as appropriate. (—)~~

~~02. — Evaluation by Faculty. Agencies used to provide practice experiences must be evaluated periodically by faculty. (—)~~

~~03. — Sufficient Experiences. There must be sufficient practice experiences to assure the development of nursing competencies consistent with the level of preparation. (—)~~

~~04. — Written Agreements. There must be written agreements with cooperating agencies that are reviewed and revised periodically. (—)~~

~~05. — Faculty Supervision. Sufficient faculty must be employed to supervise student practice experiences. An appropriate student to faculty ratio must be maintained to provide for safety and protection of patients, students, and faculty members. (—)~~

~~06. — Planned Communication. Means shall be provided for ongoing and periodic planned communication between faculty and agency administrative personnel and between faculties of all educational programs using the agency; the responsibility for coordination shall be specifically identified. (—)~~

731. -- 899. (RESERVED)

900. INITIAL LICENSE, RENEWAL AND REINSTATEMENT FEES.

01. Assessed Fees. Fees will be assessed for renewal of licensure or for reinstatement of a lapsed, disciplined, limited, or emeritus license. Any person submitting the renewal application and fee post-marked or electronically dated later than August 31 shall be considered delinquent and the license lapsed and therefore invalid:

24.34.01.900 - Initial Licensure, Renewal & Reinstatement Fees				
	Registered Nurse	Practical Nurse	Advanced Practice Nurse	Medication Assistant - Certified
Temporary License Fee	\$25	\$25	\$25	
Initial Application Fee			\$90	XX?
License by Exam Fee	\$90	\$75	\$90	
License by Endorsement	\$110	\$110		
License Renewal	\$90	\$90	\$90	\$35
Expiration Date	Aug 31-odd years	Aug 31-even years	Aug 31-odd years	Aug 31-even years

01. Assessed Fees. Fees will be assessed for renewal of licensure or for reinstatement of a lapsed, disciplined, limited, or emeritus license. Any person submitting the renewal application and fee post-marked or electronically dated later than August 31 shall be considered delinquent and the license lapsed and therefore invalid:

02. Reinstatement Fee. Nurses requesting reinstatement of a lapsed, disciplined, or restricted license, or reinstatement of an emeritus license to active status, will be assessed the records verification and renewal fees. ()

901. OTHER FEES. ()

Records Verification Fee	\$35
Return Check Fee	\$25

902. (RESERVED)

903. EDUCATION PROGRAM FEES.

~~01. Evaluation of Nursing Education Programs.~~ A fee not to exceed two hundred fifty dollars (\$250) per day will be assessed for survey and evaluation of nursing education programs which will be due at the time the evaluation is requested. ()

~~02. Evaluation of Courses of Instruction.~~ A fee not to exceed five hundred dollars (\$500) will be assessed for approval of courses of instruction related to nursing that are offered by commercial establishments. This fee will be due at the time the evaluation is requested. ()

904. ONLY ONE LICENSE - EXCEPTION.

A licensee may hold only one (1) active renewable license to practice nursing at any time except that licensed advanced practice registered nurses must also be licensed to practice as licensed registered nurses. ()

Commented [NC45]: Relocate

905. -- 998. (RESERVED)

999. ADMINISTRATIVE FINE.

An administrative fine not to exceed one hundred dollars (\$100) for each separate offense of practicing nursing without current licensure may be assessed as a condition of reinstatement of a license, or the issuance of a temporary or renewable license. ()

Commented [NC46]: For discussion at the 7/14/22 meeting

DRAFT